
www.mineralspringsnc.com 
Page 1  

Mayor Frederick Becker III – 2019    Mayor Pro Tem Bettylyn Krafft – 2021 
Town Council Members 

 

Valerie Coffey – 2019 ~ Jerry Countryman – 2021 ~ Janet Critz – 2021 
 

Lundeen Cureton – 2019 ~ Peggy Neill – 2019  
 

 

 

Town of Mineral Springs   
Mineral Springs Town Hall   

3506 S Potter Road ~ Mineral Springs 
Town Council 

Regular Meeting  
August 8, 2019 ~ 7:30 PM    

 

Agenda 
 

1. Opening  
 

The meeting will be called to order, an invocation will be delivered, and the Pledge of Allegiance will be 
recited.  
 

2. Public Comments 
 

The town council will hear comments from members of the public on any matters of interest to them 
during this ten-minute period.  

 
3. Consent Agenda 

 

A. July 11, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes 
B. June 2019 Tax Collector’s Report 
C. June 2019 Finance Report 
 

4. Consideration of a Resolution Opposing High Density Housing  
 

The council will consider adopting a resolution urging the Union County Board of County 
Commissioners to listen to the desires of the citizens and maintain the current low-density county zoning 
of R-40 and RA40 around municipalities. 

 
5. 6th Annual Festival Update and Sign-Up  

 

The council will be updated on the upcoming festival and will select their times for overseeing the town 
tent and the “I Love Lucy” memorabilia display inside town hall.  

 
6. Consideration Approving an Agreement with Taylor & Sons 
 

The council will consider an annual agreement with Taylor and Sons for the landscaping of town hall.  
 

7. Consideration of Approving Maintenance and Painting of Future Community 
Center 

 

 The council will consider approving the maintenance and painting of the future community center.  
 
8. Staff Updates   

 The staff will update the council on any developments that may affect the town.  
  
9. Other Business 

 
10. Adjournment 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 1 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

Town of Mineral Springs 
Town Hall   

3506 S. Potter Road 
Town Council 

Public Hearing / Regular Meeting  
July 11, 2019 ~ 7:30 PM  

  
 

Minutes Draft  
 

 
 

The Town Council of the Town of Mineral Springs, North Carolina, met in Public Hearing and 
Regular Session at the Mineral Springs Town Hall, Mineral Springs, North Carolina, at 7:30 
p.m. on Thursday, July 11, 2019. 
 
Present: Mayor Frederick Becker III, Mayor Pro Tem Bettylyn Krafft, Councilwoman 

Valerie Coffey, Councilman Jerry Countryman, Councilwoman Janet Critz, 
Councilwoman Lundeen Cureton, Councilwoman Peggy Neill, Town 
Clerk/Zoning Administrator Vicky Brooks, and Deputy Town Clerk Janet Ridings.  

 
Absent: Attorney Bobby Griffin. 
 
Visitors: Charles Bowden, Perry Blythe, Erin Burris, Bob Hood, Adrienne Jaquith, and 

Carrington Price. 
 
With a quorum present Mayor Frederick Becker called the Regular Town Council Meeting of  
July 11, 2019 to order at 7:32 p.m.   
 
1.  Opening 

 Councilwoman Cureton delivered the invocation. 
 Pledge of Allegiance. 
      

2. Public Hearing – Proposed Mineral Springs Development Ordinance and 
Associated Zoning Map Amendments  
 Mayor Becker opened the Proposed Mineral Springs Development Ordinance and 

Associated Zoning Map Amendments Public Hearing at 7:33 p.m. 
 Mayor Becker explained this was a public hearing on the Mineral Springs 

Development Ordinance adoption and some zoning map amendments that are 
associated with the Unified Development Ordinance adoption.  

 Benchmark Planning Representative Erin Burris gave a brief overview of where we 
have been and gotten to with the draft ordinance. 

 

 In July of 2018, the Town of Mineral Springs began working on an update to the 
zoning and subdivision ordinances to ensure that they comply with current 
statutory requirements, that they are set up to implement the goals and strategies 
of the adopted Land Use Plan, which was adopted back in 2006, that they 
incorporated best practices, and that the ordinances are functioning as intended. 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 2 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

 The town council appointed a steering committee from members of the planning 
board, board of adjustment and town council; they met several times to go over 
the draft ordinance, discuss different things in that draft and come to a consensus 
on several of those things. 

 The draft ordinance is also accompanied by a set of zoning map amendments.   
 Many people received a letter in the mail or have seen the signs on the road, which 

are required by state law. Any time a town is doing a zoning map amendment, 
letters have to be sent out to the affected property owners and the adjacent 
property owners and signs have to be posted in locations that make it clear that 
there is a change going on. 

 One of the strategies in the Land Use Plan that was adopted in 2006 was to have 
a Town Center area.  In the existing ordinance there was a Downtown Overlay 
(mostly along Waxhaw Highway), which had higher design standards for buildings 
and the sites along there.  The recommendation that came out of the process and 
the steering committee was that the Downtown Overlay go away.  In place of that 
some of the design standards and in some cases even more design standards 
would be placed on the parcels that were zoned General Business (GB) and  
Neighborhood Business (NB) along that area, so it’s not an overlay, it just applies 
to all of those zoning districts equally.  The Downtown Overlay would go away and 
the new Town Center zoning district would be applied to the area (outlined in the 
dark blue), which would set up for that to be downtown Mineral Springs. 

 We did have a public workshop on June 6th where we went into a lot more depth 
on these things. Several comments were received, and the planning board 
discussed many of those comments and there were also several things that the 
town council will need to discuss tonight that the planning board made 
recommendations on. 

 The majority of the changes to the ordinance involve implementing strategies in 
the Land Use Plan; there were also some organizational and formatting changes 
where we took the zoning ordinance and the subdivision ordinance and put them 
together into one ordinance, so there was no confusion and contradiction.  
Whenever you are doing your development, you need to know both and sometimes 
there were a few contradictions there, so the ordinance works a little bit better 
when it’s all together.  The chapters were organized better making sure there were 
no conflicts there.  We also needed to make sure we were following the current 
state law. Just to inform the board, there was a change just last week, it did not 
change much but all of the statutory references that are in the draft ordinance to 
Statute 160A will have to become 160D, so when you adopt it, just know when Ms. 
Burris is finalizing the document to give the town, those statutory references will 
have to change.  Also, conditional use permits will now be called “special use 
permits” as specified by statute. 

 Another change that was done for development processes was to introduce flow 
charts, so that a developer or citizen knows exactly what steps are in the process 
to get something approved (step 1, step 2, step 3); it tells you exactly what’s going 
on in each step. 

 Changes were made to the table of uses.  Some of the uses were consolidated so 
there weren’t quite so many (to make it a little bit less confusing), and it was 
alphabetized and has lots of organizational changes.  Some provisions were added 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 3 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

for landscaping and building design standards and the sign regulations had to be 
brought into compliance with some case law from the United States Supreme 
Court in 2015.  That was a pretty big overhaul.  Basically, every community in the 
United States had to change their sign regulations to comply with this case law.  

 A summary of the changes was provided at the workshop to the planning board as 
well as the town council. 

 

 Adrienne Jaquith – 2605 Labelle Drive: “Good Evening.  My name is Adrienne 
Jaquith and I’m here to ask that the town council reconsider adopting the new unified 
development ordinance as it’s currently proposed, specifically as it relates to not 
allowing internally lit and LED signs in any capacity within the Town of Mineral 
Springs.  To provide a quick recap, my understanding is that when the steering 
committee met in April with Benchmark Planning, the topic of internally lit and LED 
signs was brought up and Councilwoman Coffey reminded the committee that the 
church had previously requested this type of sign, which had been denied by the 
town.  It was then stated that Western Union Elementary had expressed interest to 
the planning board and town council for an LED sign as well and Councilwoman 
Coffey again said that we need to stay with that earlier decision.  The discussion 
then ended and any proposed language to allow for internally lit and LED signs was 
removed from the Benchmark Planning review material.  I was incredibly 
disappointed to hear about this turn of events.  Members of the Western Union 
Elementary Parent/Teacher Organization, including myself, along with Kristi 
Williford, the principal of Western Union, had emailed every member of the planning 
board and town council back in January of this year.  At that time, we only heard 
back from three people, who all encouraged us to work within the existing bylaws 
and admitted it would likely be an uphill battle to make the change.  When we heard 
that the town would be working with Benchmark Planning to update and amend our 
zoning and subdivision ordinances and since the topic of internally lit and LED 
signage has come up previously from businesses and organizations within the town, 
I decided to wait to submit a text amendment to allow for LED signs in some capacity, 
as I figured it would absolutely be addressed in the work with Benchmark Planning.  
Unfortunately, it sounds as though there was no real discussion around internally lit 
and LED signs beyond the blanket no, because that’s how we’ve been doing it.  It 
seems clear from the outside that there are constituents within Mineral Springs that 
would like a change made to allow for internally lit and LED signs, yet it appears that 
the steering committee did not want to listen to the feedback or work with these 
parties to figure out wording that would be mutually beneficial to both the town and 
the requester to allow for updated signage while still keeping the charm of our small 
town.  It’s clear from some of the updated buildings in the town center that the town 
council is open to controlled change.  Western Union Elementary has had a long 
history in the Town of Mineral Springs.  Over the last year, UCPS has spent a 
considerable amount of money to update the interior and exterior appearance of our 
school.  We feel strongly that an LED marquee would be the finishing touch to making 
our school look like a modern elementary school as others in the county do.  LED 
signs emit less light than the stadium lights that are lit most nights during the week 
for athletic practices at Western Union Elementary.  LED signs have the ability to be 
turned off and on, so they are not running twenty-four hours.  The LED sign is 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 4 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

significantly improved communication tool for our school committee, as well as the 
surrounding community.  It also frees up countless hours for our school staff and 
volunteers to update that outdated marquee as it stands now.  An LED sign is a 
positive change in enhancing the outward appeal of Western Union Elementary.  
There may come a point in the future where the town council would like to explore 
purchasing an LED marquee to foster better communication with the community, in 
which case you would see these benefits as well.  I understand that the town council, 
along with the planning board has expressed concerns in the past related to allowing 
internally lit and LED signs within the Town of Mineral Springs.  I would again like to 
urge the town council to reconsider adopting the new unified ordinance until 
additional discussions have occurred around LED signs and how to update the 
existing ordinances to allow for these signs according to set criteria, such as, only 
for educational and governmental institutions, only allowing to follow certain 
guidelines in terms of when the sign could be on or lit or its size, as a few examples.  
Allowing internally lit and LED signs within our town does not have to mean it’s a 
blanket approval for everyone or that every business and organization within the 
town will request a sign.  I am convinced there’s a way for us to work together to 
come up verbiage that will accomplish the goals of everyone involved and I’m 
officially volunteering to help be a part of that discussion.  Thank you”. 

 Jim Muller – 3427 Buckboard Lane: Did not wish to speak. 
 Perry Blythe – 2919 Helen Drive: “Don’t worry Rick, my question will be brief.  My 

question is could you please explain the differences in the current zoning and what 
is being proposed and could you also explain why you feel the need for this change”. 

 Bob Hood – 1400 Wyndmere Hills: “I guess I must have signed up on the wrong 
sheet there, but while I do have the opportunity to stand before you, I appreciate 
being able to be informed about this.  I own a little tract of land up here on Highway 
75.  But I guess one of my concerns would be timeframe for development of the 
property, the impact that it would have on taxes.  If there is some reason will not be 
developed for some years in the future, no doubt the change in zoning is going to 
have an impact on taxes, so I guess the impact that we’ll have on taxes starting 
whenever this rezoning will take place until the timeframe comes that its, uh, maybe 
have an opportunity for resale.  So, I guess my concern overall would be the impact 
on taxes, timeframe for development and so forth”.  

 Carrington Price – 3830 Potter Road South: “Good evening. I have to admit that I did 
not have a chance to review the ordinances, the new ordinances, as they are stated 
in the long version.  So, I just read the summary and that was a very last minute 
thing, but there was one thing that stood out to me and it’s in Section 4.4 about 
freestanding business kiosks and it says that they are permitted as accessory use 
within the parking areas of any commercial use in the greater business district.  I just 
want to ask that you reconsider that, because I think it’s very vague.  I know that in 
previous years we’ve had an ice vendor that had a truck in the parking lot there in 
downtown, we had a container that collected books that you see all over the 
community that profess to be charity, but they are really profitable kiosks and I think 
that those are not attractive and do not belong in the center of our community.  I think 
we have a very pretty town and we want it to be even prettier as we grow and develop 
and I think that a freestanding kiosk as it is, I understand it described here is a little 
vague and while there are some guidelines, I think there’s a way to get around some 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 5 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

of these guidelines.  It could be a convenience store that puts up an ice truck in the 
parking lot, because it’s selling ice for their store, but in a different location and it’s 
not attractive to our community.  So, I think this is a little bit vague, I don’t think…  If 
it’s a bank with a drive-thru, obviously that’s not a problem, that is a freestanding 
drive-thru machine, that is maybe different, but I think that it would be better to 
present this as a conditional situational and you have to present your conditional use 
rather than to just have it as an outlined ‘allowed’ in your ordinances.  Again, this is 
one thing that stood out of many that are in the new ordinances as outlined now and 
I’m sure there will be more that come up over the years that we will have to readdress 
as the community grows.  I think it’s a good plan for now, but I’m sure there will be 
things that we need to adjust as the community changes and the town actually does 
start to develop into something more than it is right now.  So, I just wanted to bring 
that to your attention”.  

 Mayor Becker closed the Proposed Mineral Springs Development Ordinance and 
Associated Zoning Map Amendments Public Hearing at 7:52 p.m.        

    
3. Public Comments 

 Charles Bowden – 6412 Pleasant Grove Road. 
 

4. Consent Agenda 
 Councilwoman Coffey  made a motion to approve the consent agenda, containing 

the following: 
 
A.   June 13, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes 
B.  May 2019 Tax Collector’s Report 
C.   May 2019 Finance Report 

 
and Councilwoman Cureton  seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as 
follows: 
   
  Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Neill 

Nays:  None 
 

5. Consideration of Adopting the Proposed Mineral Springs Development Ordinance 
and Associated Zoning Map Amendments 
 Ms. Burris explained to the council if they did want to consider the LED signs, there 

was some language in one of the early drafts, which was part of a 30 to 45-minute 
deliberation at the steering committee, that she would make available to them.  
Councilwoman Critz explained she was the liaison between the town and UNC 
Charlotte in 2006 for the original ordinance and it may appear that Councilwoman 
Coffey is just brushing off the topic, but nothing can be farther from the truth.  The 
town worked with UNC Charlotte for an entire school year and at that point in time 
(additional conversation has been had), according to UNC Charlotte, when the town 
was working with them in 2006, not only did they solemnly encourage the town not 
to introduce LED lighting in a community that is trying to maintain as a more rural 
and intimate type of setting in a small communities, they said there was absolutely 
no documented evidence that LED lights improve any kind of signage information or 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 6 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

abilities.  The fact that people may like them or not like them is certainly true, people 
definitely have opinions, and some might simply like them, and some might simply 
not like them, but the council is not coming from that perspective, the council is 
coming from a perspective where they have looked into areas that use them, looked 
into towns that do not use them, looked at what they provide, looked at the evidence 
that is factual, and there is to date no factual evidence that these signs actually 
improve information.  Councilwoman Critz continued definitely some people like 
them and that is for sure and definitely some people don’t, but as far as maintaining 
the type of atmosphere for a small town, in every venue that they have checked and 
in every resource they have spoken with and gotten in touch with, they have been 
encouraged to not go in that direction.  Councilwoman Critz added she thought what 
it may have seemed to Ms. Jaquith to be a comment that was just a blanket-less 
brush-it-off statement really has a lot more research and thought behind it than she 
realizes. 

 Ms. Burris noted that the second question was a broad question that she might need 
more specific clarification from the gentleman that said it – it was “explain the 
differences in the current and proposed zoning.”  Mr. Blythe responded it was 
basically the difference between B4/B2 and TC.  Ms. Burris asked if Mr. Blythe had 
a specific property that he owned that was going from B4/B2 to TC and he wanted 
to know the difference between those two.  Mr. Blythe responded he owned property 
in all of them.  Ms. Burris explained the difference was some of the uses allowed in 
those districts, if there is already an established use on a property, which is not 
allowed in the Town Center district, then it would be nonconforming, it could continue 
as it did.  The table of uses shows which uses are allowed in the Town Center district 
and which uses are allowed in what used to be in the B2 an B4 districts, which are 
now Neighborhood Business (NB) and General Business (GB).  Mayor Becker 
commented there were a number of restrictions on uses that were adherent to the 
Downtown Overlay and with that being gone those particular restrictions are gone.  
Ms. Burris continued where the Downtown Overlay is being removed those 
restrictions…and there are some new building design requirements that sort of take 
the place of it, but where the Town Center district is replacing B2 or B4 along that 
corridor there are some differences.  Specific uses that are changing (for example) 
are the General Business district, which was previously B4, allowed “Automotive 
sales” with a conditional use permit, where the Town Center district would not, you 
would not be allowed to have “Animal Services” with outdoor kennels, which you 
could only have with a conditional use permit in all business districts, “Farm/Garden 
Supply” would not be permitted in the Town Center district.  It was pointed out that 
the new “Town Center” is smaller than what the Downtown Overlay was, and it has 
a more tailored purpose.  Mayor Becker mentioned a lot of the uses allowed in 
General Business, but not in Town Center are bigger uses (e.g. miniature golf, 
auditoriums).  Ms. Burris added things that might have a little bit more in the way of 
outdoor storage, most of them there might be a conditional use permit required in 
the Town Center versus the General Business district.  The biggest difference in the 
Town Center is the building design standards are slightly higher than they are in the 
other business districts.  Mayor Becker emphasized if the property is currently 
residential nothing will change.  Ms. Burris explained single-family residential is a 
use permitted by right in the Town Center district.  The Town Center district is more 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 7 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

of a mixed use district, you can have both businesses and residences based on what 
is in the Land Use Plan, sort of the layout in there, that is what the town was going 
for, making it more of a downtown area with some surrounding residential.  Mayor 
Becker mentioned at the time the Downtown Overlay was adopted, the council was 
more ambitious about the area extending both ways on either side of Potter Road 
and they wanted that to be a lovely pedestrian friendly downtown and the steering 
committee, planning board, and Ms. Burris realized that it wasn’t realistic to visualize 
all of that area as the Town Center.  It isn’t happening now, and it hasn’t been 
happening for 15 years, so a smaller area is being focused on for what the pedestrian 
friendly Town Center will be. 

 Ms. Burris responded to the question about the impact on taxes.  Ms. Burris assumed 
the question dealt with rezoning those properties to Town Center.  It certainly would 
not have an effect on the properties that are already zoned commercial.  From what 
Ms. Burris knows from Cabarrus County when there is a rezoning, it depends on how 
the tax assessor handles things.  Ms. Burris explained in her mind, just because you 
change letters on a map, it shouldn’t change the taxes.  The location and potential 
for the property is more important, but sometimes there are some slight differences 
whenever you let the tax assessor know this is a residentially zoned property now, 
but now it could be mixed use, sometimes that does have a slight impact on the 
taxes.  Zoning this area Town Center gives people a clearer picture of the town’s 
intent by implementing the Land Use Plan.   

 Ms. Burris responded to the question about the business kiosks.  There is an entire 
page of regulations that goes along with business kiosks in section 4.4.8.2.  A 
business kiosk can’t be more than 200 square feet, they have to have a certain 
amount of space for stacking if it involves a drive-thru, they have to be treated like 
an accessory structure in the design requirements in the ordinance (materials of the 
kiosks must match the materials of the principal structure), they have to meet the 
setbacks of the district, they are only allowed by right in the General Business district 
and with a special use permit in the Town Center.  As a suggestion of the speaker, 
if the council wanted to, they could make the “allowed by right in the General 
Business” as conditional.   

 Councilwoman Coffey referred to a comment made by Carrington Price and noted 
that the book collection stand that was there was not sanctioned by the town and if 
there was someone out there selling ice from a truck that was not sanctioned.  The 
town had a big deal about an ice vendor wanting to come here and they were talking 
about all of the (construction) people coming through the town at the time and the 
town did not approve that.  Neither one of them were sanctioned by the town and 
they were dealt with.  Ms. Burris added based on the description Councilwoman 
Coffey just gave, neither one of them would be allowed under business kiosk, it has 
to be an actual structure. 

 Ms. Burris explained there were several items that came up during the steering 
committee discussions and during the public input meeting.  The planning board did 
take the time to make individual recommendations on these 11 issues to let the 
council know where they stood, but knowing it was ultimately up to the council to 
decide.  The planning board also recommended approval of the overall ordinance. 

 Ms. Burris explained she would go through the individual items and she would defer 
to Mayor Becker on the direction of voting on each one individually as well.  Mayor 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 8 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

Becker felt if the council was going to recommend a specific change, they should 
make a motion on it each time.  Councilwoman Krafft pointed out everything that was 
“conditional use” had to be changed to “special use”.  Ms. Burris responded upon   
adoption, it can be made part of the motion, that she would make it consistent with 
the new general statute 160D.  Ms. Burris also pointed out that the language in the 
legislation specifically says…  Let’s say you weren’t doing this ordinance change, 
you wouldn’t even have to do a text amendment, it says, “your ordinance is amended, 
go do it.”  After adoption, Ms. Burris will make the necessary corrections (special 
use, references to 160A will go to 160D along with the new section number).     

 Ms. Burris and the council went through the individual items as follows: 
o Section 3.4, which deals with the town council acting as the board of adjustment 

for conditional use permits.  The town may choose to have the appointed board 
of adjustment hear and act on conditional use permits or continue to have the 
town council act as the board of adjustment to hear and decide upon such 
requests pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes.  The planning board 
recommended that the board of adjustment hear all conditional use permits 
(special use permits), whereas the council hears them now.  The reasons cited 
were to keep the board of adjustment engaged, there are full town council 
agendas, and the legislative nature of council meetings versus the quasi-judicial 
nature of board of adjustment proceedings.  The statutes give you full authority 
to decide whichever board you want to hear those as long as they are acting as 
the board of adjustment.  Mayor Becker mentioned that this came up with the 
council a couple of months ago and there was some indecisiveness about which 
way to go.  The council has been hearing conditional use permits over the years 
and even with more of the comments from the planning board, it does sound like 
it might be better served to have that independent non-elected board that can be 
considered impartial hearing those to make it a cleaner, easier process.  Mayor 
Becker added that he has had to chair a lot of quasi-judicial special use permit 
hearings and they are awkward, there have been recusals, maybe elected 
officials feel it is harder for them to be impartial because the council is not an 
appointed board.  Mayor Becker likes that recommendation of letting the board 
of adjustment be in charge of special use permits.  Councilwoman Critz asked if 
the council was assuming that the planning board and the board of adjustment 
are combined.  Mayor Becker responded no.  Councilwoman Coffey stated it was 
her consensus that the council needs to keep the board of adjustment in place 
and that they hear the special use permits.  Any concern about the board of 
adjustment being up to date on the latest language and uses can be met with 
more training taking place immediately.  There was a consensus of the council to 
keep the board of adjustment and planning board as individual boards.  
Councilwoman Critz expressed concerns with the board of adjustment hearing 
special use permits and noted that she knew the council dotted their “I’s” and 
crossed their “t’s” when hearing them.  Councilwoman Coffey offered that the 
board of adjustment is diligent in performing their duties and carrying them out, 
she just got back involved on that board, and the members are serious about 
their work.   

o Councilman Countryman made a motion that the board of adjustment hear 
special use permits in the future and that it not be a duty of the council or the 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 9 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

planning board.  Councilwoman Critz asked if that meant the planning board 
wouldn’t see it.  Ms. Burris responded if the council does decide that the board of 
adjustment is going to be handling it, that automatically takes care of number two, 
it would just be the board of adjustment.  Mayor Becker noted there was a motion 
on the floor and asked if there was a second.  Councilwoman Cureton seconded 
the motion by Councilman Countryman.  The council determined that item one 
and item two were interrelated and they wanted further discussion.  Councilman 
Countryman withdrew his motion.  Ms. Burris explained she spoke with Adam 
Lovelady at the School of Government in person and asked him about the current 
procedure Mineral Springs has and other jurisdictions in the state, not nearly as 
many have the board of adjustment doing it, but other jurisdictions have the 
arrangement Mineral Springs has as far as the planning board making 
recommendations to the council.  It is not a step that is in the statutes, it is not 
required, as a matter of fact, even when they did this new update, they did not list 
that as even an option in the statutes, it is silent on it.  Typically, when you have 
an enabling legislation you don’t do things that aren’t specifically allowed, but 
there are several other jurisdictions that do the planning board step.  It is less 
common, but it is used by many communities.  What is not typical is town council 
members serving on the planning board, it is not illegal, but it is highly inadvisable, 
ex officio membership would be recommended instead on the planning board.  
There are potential problems, especially with the current arrangement regarding 
more potential of ex parte communication and difficulty obtaining a quorum at the 
town council level if one has sat at the planning board.  There is no problem with 
the town council acting as the board of adjustment for special use permits, and 
there is no problem with the board of adjustment acting as the board of 
adjustment.  Ms. Burris noted right now the council was leaning toward keeping 
the planning board and board of adjustment as separate boards and that was 
fine, but the way the language is in the ordinance, at any time the council can 
choose whichever group of people they want to hear special use permits or hear 
board of adjustment cases, the council can say “we just don’t have enough board 
of adjustment members, so the planning board is now the board of adjustment”.  
The council can do that at any point, because the language is flexible.  The statute 
specifically allows that.   

o Councilman Countryman made a motion that the board of adjustment be the 
administrative body for looking at special use permits, and no planning board 
involved, and Councilwoman Cureton seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously as follows:  

 
   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 

Nays:  None 
 

o Ms. Burris explained this one involved the text, as well as, the map amendment 
related to the Downtown Overlay and the Town Center.  There was a lot of 
discussion about it.  This would involve removing the Downtown Overlay and 
introduction of the Town Center Zoning District with more detailed design 
requirements, which includes the Zoning Map amendment.  The intent of the 
previous Downtown Overlay was to institute more stringent design requirements 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 10 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

for new development within the downtown core.  The new development ordinance 
provides an entire article with detailed and illustrated design requirements (Article 
6) applicable to all non-residential development in the Neighborhood Business 
and General Business districts, with slightly relaxed requirements for the Light 
Industrial district and slightly more stringent requirements for the Town Center 
district.  Some concern has been expressed by planning board and council 
members that developments along Highway 75 and within the Town Center 
zoning district need to retain an additional layer of review beyond administrative 
even with the additional standards and guidance in the ordinance.  Special Use 
Permits are still required for retail developments over a certain size, as well as 
many other uses - especially within the Town Center district.  The planning board 
did recommend that the Downtown Overlay be removed and that the new Town 
Center district be created as shown on the draft amended zoning map and they 
cited reasons that there were new design requirements that achieved improved 
building design for commercial zoning districts, and any retail establishment over 
3,000 square feet would still be subject to the issuance of a special use permit.   

o Mayor Becker asked if that was the language presently in the ordinance.  Ms. 
Burris responded, the language is different, you are taking out an overlay.  Mayor 
Becker clarified what he meant was what’s in the draft.  Ms. Burris responded, 
yes.  Mayor Becker asked if what was being adopted was already in the draft, no 
changes were being made.  Ms. Burris responded this is what the planning board 
recommended, it is highlighted in red in the draft, so if the council does change 
it, she will know what needs to be changed.  

o Councilwoman Neill made a motion to move forward with item three as written 
and Councilwoman Krafft seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as 
follows: 

 
   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 

Nays:  None 
 

o Mayor Becker asked Ms. Burris if item four had been changed in the table.  Ms. 
Burris responded yes, those changes were reflected, in the draft, for instance 
drive-thru restaurants may be allowed with conditional use permits, but the 
planning board recommended that not happen.  Everything on the list, where it 
says “do not allow” or “allow” is reflected in the draft.  Mayor Becker stated he 
was looking at the table with restaurants with drive-thru, it says they would be 
allowed conditionally in General Business and by right in mixed use and that is 
not what the town wants based on the planning board recommendation.  Mayor 
Becker instructed Ms. Burris to make sure that came out of the table, because 
that is not what the town wants.   

o Ms. Burris explained there was clarification at the planning board level, and it was 
noted and if they recommended something be allowed or something not be 
allowed it was listed and shown in the draft either changed or shown in red.  Ms. 
Burris noted the planning board recommendations are shown in the staff report 
in front of the council.  Ms. Burris explained the planning board recommended 
the drive-thru uses not be allowed; farmers markets be allowed in the R20 with 
the conditional use permit just like the other residential districts; and all retail uses 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 11 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

over 3,000 square feet be required to have a conditional use permit, which they 
do now.  Mayor Becker asked about the second item where it says, “agricultural 
homes” and what it should say is “agricultural uses, home”.  Mayor Becker asked 
what the clarification on “dormitories” was.  Ms. Burris responded the question 
was why you allow colleges and universities with a conditional use permit and 
sometimes dormitories close by (separate from the use), they are only allowed 
with a conditional use permit.   

o Councilwoman Critz made a motion to approve the recommendations as 
presented and Councilwoman Coffey.  The motion passed unanimously as 
follows: 

 
   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 

Nays:  None 
 

o Ms. Burris referred to the next item as Section 4.4.2.2 (C) regarding accessory 
structures with a recommended exception to allow property maintenance sheds 
without there being a principal structure on the property.  The town’s ordinance 
and most ordinances say in order to have an accessory structure, you have to 
first have a principal structure and typically in a residential district your principal 
structure is going to be a house.  This would allow a small shed for the storage 
of maintenance items on a property that does not have a house.  This came up 
just before the planning board meeting and they discussed it at length.  While 144 
square feet may seem like an odd size, it is actually a 12 X 12 shed, anything 
larger than that would require a building permit.  The threshold the planning board 
chose for the property size was any property of two acres or greater for the 
maintenance shed.  This does not affect barns and agricultural uses; they are 
already allowed.  Councilwoman Critz asked if this was (hypothetically) for 
someone who has a couple of acres that does not have a home there (yet) and 
they are trying to keep it maintenanced.  Councilwoman Critz asked how many 
times this has come up.  Ms. Brooks responded not many.  Mayor Becker 
commented if it has come up once, is it an acceptable use for the property, that 
is really all that matters; it can’t really hurt.  It gives someone an option to put an 
accessory maintenance shed on a property if desired.  Councilwoman Coffey 
added if they are packing, they wouldn’t have to pack all of those things in their 
small car or rent a truck to come out to the property.   

o Councilman Countryman made a motion to adopt that provision in 4.4.2.2 and 
Councilwoman Neill seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows:  

 
   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 

Nays:  None 
 

o Ms. Burris explained that provisions have been added for banquet and events 
facilities, which will include specific minimums on lot size and location.  The 
planning board did recommend in addition to what was already in there that 
banquet and events facilities not be permitted in subdivisions of ten lots or greater 
to minimize adverse impacts of such facilities within a neighborhood setting.  This 
use is in the table of uses and in Section 4.4.6.2.  Councilwoman Critz asked how 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 12 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

a banquet or event was defined.  Ms. Burris referred to page 9 -10 for the 
definition, which states “a facility for lease for private parties, such facilities may 
or may not provide catering, photography, or similar services associated with 
private parties’ weddings, birthdays, and similar occasions.”   A “Bed and 
Breakfast” can be permitted as a banquet facility with them as long as it is 
approved as part of a special use permit.  That provision has to include not being 
in a subdivision of more than ten lots.   

o Councilwoman Neill made a motion to approve that section and 
Councilwoman Critz seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows: 

 
   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 

Nays:  None 
 

o Ms. Burris referred to Section 5.5.3 (H) and explained the question that came up 
at the public workshop – should up to two rows of parking be permitted in the 
front yard of non-residential buildings.  Previously no parking was permitted in 
the front of buildings within the Downtown Overlay. The draft ordinance 
recommends allowing up to two rows of parking in front of the building coupled 
with improved landscaping standards.  The planning board recommendation on 
this was to allow up to two rows of parking in the front yard of non-residential 
buildings, except in the Town Center district. The reasons cited were this follows 
the existing development pattern; it allows greater site design flexibility; and 
impacts are mitigated with improved landscaping requirements.   

o Councilwoman Critz mentioned there is a lesser setback in some of these areas 
and it is her feeling that the town needs to keep the parking in the rear.  The town 
is already compromising in possibly a very good way of allowing the lesser 
setback in the front, side and rear.  To Councilwoman Critz, it just makes common 
sense, specifically if they are near the railroad track, because they will want their 
building as far from the track as they can and put all of the parking in the back.  
Councilwoman Critz can’t imagine how they could landscape it.  What the town 
has now with the parking in front was here already long before the town and was 
grandfathered there and has no appeal whatsoever, even though they did do 
more landscaping, “we requested it and they did it.”  Mayor Becker interjected 
that they were required.  Councilwoman Critz continued, “it was required, it 
happened, and it was still not appealing.”   

o Councilwoman Coffey stated she thought the town needed front parking; we are 
going to need the parking – period.  Everybody can’t be in the back, that’s just 
not going to work.  Councilwoman Neill asked why not.  Councilwoman Coffey 
continued that the town was hoping to attract more people and if that is the case, 
when all of the traffic comes in here, the new residents that are going to be 
downtown spending their money – where are they going to park?  Councilwoman 
Coffey asked what the objection was to what they are seeing right now.  It is kept 
clean, it’s neat.  Councilwoman Coffey enjoyed using it when the little dollar store 
was over there.  Councilwoman Coffey has not visited Millbridge in Waxhaw, 
even though they are a street and don’t have a place in the front, because she 
doesn’t have a desire to drive around to the back of that building; it is not 
appealing to Councilwoman Coffey.  Councilwoman Critz stated that would not 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 13 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

change her desire or intent at all.  Here we are not talking about quantity, here 
they can have just as many parking spaces, but they should be done in the back.  
Councilwoman Critz isn’t saying “limit their parking”, or if you are going to do it in 
the front, it should be done in one row.  Councilwoman Cureton asked where 
Councilwoman Critz was talking about parking.  Councilwoman Critz gave an 
example of a small gourmet grocery opening, you would see the building, there 
would be a sidewalk, some landscaping, the front of the building, sidewalks 
around and the parking would be in the rear.  Councilwoman Coffey responded 
that wouldn’t be her type of establishment, but that was a personal thing. 

o Councilman Countryman asked if there was some restriction or discussion in the 
ordinance based on the size of the business that “X” amount of parking spaces 
have to be available.  Ms. Burris responded there is a minimum number of parking 
spaces that is designated for each use in the ordinance.  Councilman 
Countryman asked if that was coupled with the size of the lot where the business 
is, is there a situation where there isn’t enough space based on setbacks in order 
to have that required parking all in the front or in one row and that it might be 
necessary to have two rows in order to qualify.  Ms. Burris responded it depended 
on the site, the ordinance doesn’t say you have to have two rows in the front, but 
it allows up to two rows in the front, whereas before it just didn’t allow any parking 
up front.  Councilman Countryman stated his point was if that building requires 
“X” amount of parking spaces, then is there enough space and will it 
accommodate that “X” number of spaces in one row and if the answer is “no”, 
then they can’t have their business.  Ms. Burris responded new construction can 
shift the building on site as necessary, but in some cases, depending on other 
site constraints they might not be able to shift the parking to the side or rear.  
What the draft ordinance allows is the flexibility.  Councilman Countryman 
responded that was to his point and if it is well landscaped and that’s the only 
way that building/business can exist, “are we going to not allow that business to 
exist” by saying “you can’t have two rows of parking.”  Councilman Countryman 
does not want to do that.  Councilwoman Krafft thought the town had to allow 
more flexibility for the site plans for development to encourage development in 
the area.  Mayor Becker added the town has been concerned that we don’t get 
enough downtown development and the town should try to look for ways to make 
it easier.  Councilman Countryman commented it’s one of the things the town has 
heard for twenty years is that the development of this downtown area and by 
being, at sometimes, overly conservative, maybe the town has detracted from 
some of that growth.  Councilman Countryman thought by being more flexible the 
town may enhance the opportunity to see our downtown develop in a little more 
attractive way, while he does not want a Walmart parking lot in downtown Mineral 
Springs, but if it is done discreetly and because of all of these new requirements 
that have been put into the ordinance regarding the appropriate landscaping, he 
thought it could be done appropriately. 

o Councilwoman Critz asked if it could be stated in such a way that it is allowed 
only as a necessity.  The town went through a lot of effort and looked at a lot of 
designs to come up…we didn’t just say “oh hey, let’s don’t park in front”.  The 
town worked with the University and through the Urban Open Space Institute for 
five years, we had dozens of resource officers from all over the United States at 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 14 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

our disposal, over 100, in a five-year period.  The branding and what that looks 
like has to be decided.  If the town is trying to attract business, Councilwoman 
Critz has been involved either on the planning board, board of adjustment, town 
council or concurrently since 1999, she was an original planning board and board 
of adjustment member prior to being elected.  Councilwoman Critz is very well 
aware, to her knowledge in that 21 year period, no business has been turned 
away because they couldn’t manage parking, so it’s not like the town is turning 
away business, it’s not like the town is not trying to attract people, they have sat 
down with many business people and they have had the University and town hall 
meetings and we’ve had them talk to landowners.  Councilwoman Critz agreed 
with Councilman Countryman and Councilwoman Krafft, if there were a situation 
where there was a legitimate business owner and because of the way the building 
needed to be positioned, then she was all for having an alternate, but it should 
not be by right, if the back parking can happen and the landscaping can happen, 
then the town should hold tight and then if there is a situation where that building 
can’t go there unless that parking is different, then let’s be flexible.  Don’t throw 
the standards out, let’s have some kind of compromise here.  Councilwoman Critz 
asked, “am I making sense?”  Ms. Burris responded the draft ordinance does 
have a built-in provision for alternate design proposals where there may be a 
situation where it might not work, so if you were to say “no parking in the front”, 
they would still have the ability to ask for an alternative design proposal from the 
town council.  Ms. Burris added anytime you do a visual preference survey, where 
citizens look at different pictures and see what looks better, obviously the one 
where you see more building and less parking is usually preferred.  Where the 
“rubber meets the road” when you are doing site design, sometimes that doesn’t 
always work out.  It’s always good to have flexibility in the ordinance, but it is 
completely up to the council how they want to handle it.  The planning board just 
recommended that up to two rows of parking be allowed in the front.  
Councilwoman Critz asked if the council took that out and left it as it was where 
the parking was in the rear, then that business owner still has every opportunity 
to come back, if there is an issue, and apply for a special use permit.  Ms. Burris 
responded it would be an alternative design proposal, which is a new provision 
that has been introduced to the ordinance (landscaping design, building design). 

o Councilwoman Coffey commented if she was understanding correctly, all new 
business would be rear parking if they left it.  Councilwoman Critz responded if 
the town doesn’t allow the front parking as a right, it would be rear parking and 
then if there is a problem, they can apply for an alternative design proposal and 
their problem can be addressed.  Councilwoman Coffey stated she may be 
overthinking it, but she is trying to envision the Town Center with all back parking, 
and she was having a problem.  Ms. Burris explained the way the planning board 
recommended it was that two rows of parking would be allowed in all the 
nonresidential district except the Town Center, they still wanted it to the side and 
rear in the Town Center.  Ms. Burris further explained the planning board thought 
it would be okay to allow up to two rows of parking in the commercial districts 
along the highway and the railroad.  Councilwoman Coffey explained her whole 
concern was they were talking about mixed use as well.  Ms. Burris referred to 
the diagram in the draft ordinance, which showed everything on the parking.  



 
 

Minutes Book 21 15 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

Mayor Becker shared that he was confused about “H” on page 5-95 where it says 
for nonresidential uses outside of Town Center with more than two rows of 
parking in the front.  Mayor Becker asked if any of the proposals would allow 
more than two rows in the front.  Councilwoman Critz suggested that the word 
“more” be removed.  Ms. Burris explained letter “F” tells you how to treat parking 
in Town Center and letter “H” is talking about non-residential uses outside of 
Town Center, because you deal with those like you do in “H and F”.  Ms. Burris 
stated it could refer to that subsection to make it more clear, but what it is saying 
is “we are allowing you to have two rows of parking in the front”; however, if for 
instance, a grocery store would want to build here, you are going to have more 
than two rows of parking in front (that’s the way a grocery store works”.  Ms. Burris 
referred to page 5-96 in the draft ordinance, which showed how it would be 
treated where you have the outparcels screening them.  Ms. Burris gave the 
example of the Harris Teeter in Rosedale and the one in Huntersville, which are 
part of a nice mixed-use development; a smaller version of that would work nicely 
here.  The Harris Teeter’s are pushed back, and several outparcels are in front 
where it almost looks like a street going in front of Harris Teeter and it is just 
separated from the parking.  This is what the diagram (on page 5-96) is showing 
and how to still have that more pedestrian environment where your large parking 
areas are screened.  It gives you two options: to greatly increase your street yard; 
or screen it with outparcels. 

o Councilwoman Critz explained during the planning process with the University, 
three town hall meetings were held by them at the fire department (with 100+ 
residents each time) they showed actual photographs and the vast majority of 
constituents, business owners and developers were saying they liked the side 
and rear parking when they came out of the meetings.  Even Mr. Raley, who 
owned this property, was one of the attendees and thought it was a problem, but 
he realized at the end of it that it was no longer a problem (this was communicated 
to the town by Mr. Raley) and he got on board with the design itself and how it 
looked.  Councilwoman Critz asked why and how it can’t be made to look that 
way without having some of these standards in place, while she didn’t want to 
belabor the issue, it was an important part and the constituents were a part of 
that decision making during those town hall meetings. 

o Councilwoman Coffey commented the key thing was what Councilwoman Critz 
just stated earlier – “my personal opinion doesn’t matter”, it is what the 
constituents says that matters.  The council votes along the lines of what their 
constituents want them to do and the Land Use Plan lays it out for the council.  
Councilwoman Coffey stated what she thought was a moot point.   

o Mayor Becker stated he didn’t want to belabor it, but he was confused by the text, 
in the agenda packet staff report, which says the planning board recommended 
up to two rows of parking can be permitted (no more than), but the draft ordinance 
says for non-residential uses outside of Town Center with more than two rows.  
Ms. Burris responded they say the same thing, but two rows is the same thing as 
with more than two.  Ms. Burris will reword it to make them match, but they are 
both saying you can have up to two rows of parking in front.  Mayor Becker stated 
they both said you could have more than two rows.  Ms. Burris responded you 
can if you do what is in the diagrams on the next page [page 5-97].  Mayor Becker 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 16 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

asked if what Ms. Burris was saying was either with extra landscaping, it would 
allow up to two rows without any additional landscaping above and beyond and 
then in theory there could be even more than two rows if it was a big…  Ms. Burris 
responded if the town didn’t like option #1, it could be taken out, but option #2 
shows the outparcels.  Option #2 is basically if somebody wants to build a grocery 
store, they are going to have to screen with outparcels, because they are going 
to have more than two rows of parking.  Mayor Becker responded just as long as 
it is made clear we are talking about up to two, depending on what the council 
finally decides on. 

o Councilwoman Critz stated this was not a mountain she was willing to die on, but 
she would personally (since there is an alternative design proposal) like to see 
this removed and stick to the side and rear parking.  Ms. Burris asked if that was 
a motion.  Councilwoman Critz responded no, she was telling the council this, 
because she was not willing to die here, but she did want to say that she had 
strong feelings in that direction.  Councilwoman Coffey stated she would like to 
say it is a motion and she was taking Councilwoman Neill as a second.  
Councilwoman Neill explained she understood what Councilwoman Critz was 
saying and she sees Councilman Countryman’s point, but she was at those 
meetings and heard overwhelming support for that.  Councilwoman Neill didn’t 
hear anybody stand up and say “oh, oh, oh no, we don’t want that, that’s horrible”.  
Councilwoman Neill stated she has been to many communities where it works, 
and she thought the town should stick to their standard. 

o Councilwoman Critz made a motion in Section 5.5.3 that we remove the option 
by right of two rows of parking, maintain our side and rear parking standards and 
that the business owner or building or whatever has the opportunity through the 
alternative design proposal to come back to us for us to reconsider it if there 
should be a building complication.  Mayor Becker asked if that was to specifically 
direct that it be in that section to mention that parking in front can be considered 
through the alternative design proposal process (as part of the language).  
Councilwoman Critz responded, “it’s not by right, but it can be considered if 
necessary, through the alternative design proposal.”  Councilwoman Neill 
seconded the motion made by Councilwoman Critz.  Councilwoman Cureton 
asked for clarification that nobody could park in the front.  Mayor Becker 
responded, “in general, nobody in the front, unless they go through the process 
of…”  Councilwoman Neill added, “they have a loophole.”  Mayor Becker 
continued “of going to design proposal to ask for front parking with a submitted 
design.”  Councilwoman Coffey stated she was going to vote in the affirmative on 
this, because it is what the constituents desire.  Mayor Becker called for a vote 
on Councilwoman Critz’ motion.  The vote resulted in a tie as follows: Ayes – 
Coffey, Critz, and Neill; Nays – Countryman, Cureton, and Krafft.  With Mayor 
Becker having to break the tie, he stated he would be deferring to the constituents 
also, as Councilwoman Coffey said.  Mayor Becker stated he had reservations 
about whether he liked it but was going to vote in the affirmative on it.  The motion 
by Councilwoman Critz passed as follows:  

 
  Ayes:  Becker, Coffey, Critz, and Neill 

Nays:  Countryman, Cureton and Krafft 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 17 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

o Ms. Burris referred to #8, Section 5.5.5 (b), which was also dealing with rear yard 
parking.  Ms. Burris explained the question was posed – should any overflow 
gravel parking areas be permitted in the rear yard when all required parking 
spaces are paved.  The provision in the ordinance basically says, “if all of your 
minimum required parking is paved”, but that would be assuming you were 
allowed to have parking in the front. 

o Councilman Countryman made a motion to approve the planning board’s 
recommendation.  Ms. Burris commented this goes away with what the council 
just did, because you are not allowing any front yard parking; therefore, all of your 
rear yard parking is going to be your minimum parking.  Mayor Becker responded 
unless there is lots of room in the rear and they want overflow.  Councilman 
Countryman disagreed and asked what if it’s side parking.  Mayor Becker 
responded that must be paved.  Ms. Burris responded that was true and they 
were right.  Councilwoman Critz seconded the motion made by Councilman 
Countryman.  The motion passed unanimously as follows: 

 
   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 

Nays:  None 
                         

o Ms. Burris referred to Section 5.5.9 (C) and asked if trucks over two axles should 
be permitted to park on residential lots.  Ms. Burris explained this mainly has to 
do with tractor trailers that are over two axles.  The planning board recommended 
that on residentially zoned or used lots, excluding agricultural properties, that 
trucks with greater than two axles should not be parked on an overnight basis to 
prevent the adverse impacts of noise to adjacent properties. 

o Councilwoman Critz made a motion to approve [there was no second to this 
motion].  Councilwoman Coffey stated she was of the opinion that the town must 
allow our residents the right to work and have the financial feasibility to feed and 
clothe their families and then find a way home.  If we are talking lot size that is 
large enough to accommodate it, decibels are not that high on a truck that it is 
going to create a major problem for anyone.  There are quite a few residents right 
now that are parking their tractor trailers at their homes and the ones that 
Councilwoman Coffey knows about have two or more acres.  Councilwoman 
Coffey stated in her opinion it was unconscionable that the town is attempting to 
place a financial burden on the independent operator, “we cannot do this, please.”  
Councilwoman Critz commented she was thinking of massive 18-wheelers and 
asked if Councilwoman Coffey was referring to anything larger than a dually.  
Councilwoman Coffey responded she was referring to 18-wheelers, they have 
them right now on three streets (that she knows of) in her neighborhood.  They 
have been there, so they would be grandfathered, because these people have 
been operating in excess of 27 years.  Councilwoman Critz asked if 
Councilwoman Coffey was saying it is their livelihood and it is not disturbing to 
the community.  Councilwoman Coffey responded, it wasn’t, and it is their 
livelihood.  It would be a serious inconvenience for them to have to find a truck 
stop.  Councilwoman Coffey suggested the restriction be on lot size, “if you’re on 
a half-acre, I mean come on.”  Councilwoman Neill offered her concern would be 
the damage to road in the community where they live.  Councilwomen Coffey and 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 18 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

Cureton responded, “they are not being damaged.”  Councilwoman Cureton 
continued that they [18-wheelers] are all over her neighborhood and the roads 
are not being damaged.  Councilwoman Critz asked if the secondary road was 
holding up to this burden.  Councilwoman Coffey responded absolutely.  
Councilwoman Cureton responded the secondary roads are better than the main 
roads.  Councilman Countryman noted in realistic terms, it is still the responsibility 
of DOT and not the town’s responsibility whether or not they hold up.  
Councilwoman Cureton commented that DOT will come out and fix potholes.  
Councilwoman Krafft added there were two over on her side and they are not 
damaging or hurting anybody.  Mayor Becker believed there was one in Valley 
Farms on Hastings Road that has been doing it for years.  Councilwoman Critz 
explained she didn’t even think of him when she read this section, because it 
says excluding agricultural property and she thinks of Valley Farms as 
agricultural. 

o Mayor Becker asked if the council thought there should be a lot restriction and 
noted a half-acre was not enough, because the houses are too close together.  
The Town Center would maybe not be the place for it.  Ms. Burris noted the draft 
ordinance was talking about residentially zoned or used lots.  Mayor Becker noted 
the Town Center is a different zone.  Ms. Burris explained if the council was 
thinking of a threshold of one acre or two acres, it was a big decision that had to 
be made.  The section could be taken out completely or the council can establish 
a minimum lot size.  Councilwoman Critz was grateful for what Councilwoman 
Coffey said, because she was not thinking that way at all.  There needs to be 
something reasonable, because you have to consider that person’s livelihood and 
you have to consider that person’s neighbor, so there needs to be some 
boundary.  Councilwoman Coffey shared the only one that was on a smaller lot 
was one acre and they haven’t had any issues or challenges that she was aware 
of and they have been there for at least eight years or so (if they are still 
operative).  Mayor Becker asked if they park in the front.  Councilwoman Coffey 
responded on the side.  Mayor Becker suggested that council add another 
restriction – that they have to park in the side or rear yard.  Councilwoman Critz 
clarified side or rear yard and a two-acre minimum.  Mayor Becker and 
Councilwoman Krafft responded, “one acre”.  Councilwoman Coffey added “one 
acre minimum, everybody can’t afford the two-acres.”   

o Councilman Countryman explained his issue was if there is somebody that is 
driving a truck and that is the way they are making their living and they are parking 
their truck at their house and the town limits it to one-acre and this person lives 
on a piece of property that is less than an acre, the town just took away their 
ability to park their truck there.  Councilwoman Critz responded the council has 
to consider the livelihood of people, but they can’t throw the neighbor under the 
bus.  Councilman Countryman stated he has been on this council since 1998 and 
has never heard the first compliant about somebody driving a truck and parking 
it at their house.  Councilwomen Krafft and Critz responded they have, and 
Councilwoman Neill added that people don’t complain.  Mayor Becker offered 
there was a case where they were parking on the street and it was one of those 
rare streets that is not a DOT street, even though it was in a subdivision there 
was nothing the town could do about it.  Councilwoman Krafft shared there was 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 19 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

on her street and people do complain (not about noise) about him not parking on 
the side, so it is more out in the middle of the road at times and it blocks…  
Councilman Countryman responded he would be inclined to go along with the 
fact that they either have to park in the back or the side as a stipulation, but he 
wasn’t interested in going along with a lot size requirement.  Councilwoman Critz 
restated she thought it should be at least one acre in order to protect the neighbor.  
Councilwoman Cureton asked what the town was going to do if someone already 
had less property than an acre.  Councilwoman Critz responded they do what 
everybody else does and finds somewhere else to park it.  Councilwoman 
Cureton noted they would have to pay then, if they park in the backyard or 
wherever, it doesn’t bother her.  Councilwoman Critz stated Councilwoman 
Coffey said that some of them were less than an acre.  Councilman Countryman 
responded that could happen.  Councilwoman Coffey offered everything they 
have is an acre.  Mayor Becker commented they have half-acre lots in Western 
Union, but most of them have two or three lots together.  Councilwoman Critz 
explained if you did (have less than an acre) and had someone pulling in and out 
of there all the time and you lived next door to that, it would affect your home 
environment. 

o Ms. Burris asked the council to take a second and imagine the future (not what 
exists now), in the R20 district (half-acre lots) in a subdivision, which would 
theoretically have covenants that would govern this.  But, if it doesn’t have 
covenants, there is a potential to have one parked on half-acre lots.  The council 
can either say they are comfortable with a threshold or not (e.g. side or rear) or 
they can take it out completely.  Councilwoman Krafft stated she didn’t think you 
could limit it on the lot size, especially if you are thinking about this area, because 
that’s what they do.  Councilwoman Critz suggested just side and rear parking.  
Mayor Becker commented they could do side and rear, but don’t give a lot size.  
Councilwoman Critz stated she would retract her motion and let Councilwoman 
Coffey take the floor.   

o Councilwoman Coffey made a motion that we allow the parking at the side and 
rear for our tractor trailers, trucks larger than two axles and Councilwoman 
Cureton seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows:  

   
   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 

Nays:  None 
  

o Ms. Burris referred to Section 7.5.12 and explained this could be opened up to 
both sign types that have been discussed this evening.  Ms. Burris asked the 
council if the town wanted to allow feather flags/shark fin signs and suggested 
the council could discuss LED signs at this time.  Ms. Burris noted the planning 
board recommended permitting one feather flag/shark fin sign per property for 
non-residential use, treating it just like the real estate type sign, which is a type 1 
temporary sign (as listed in the ordinance).  Ms. Burris explained the planning 
board did not recommend anything on LED signs, because it wasn’t in the draft, 
but the steering committee was very specific about not wanting to allow them. 

o Mayor Becker asked if there was any time limit implied on the feather signs or 
could just one be put up as a permanent sign.  Ms. Burris responded, “basically”, 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 20 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

essentially the town has established four different types of temporary signs.  The 
feather signs were not initially listed as permitted, so that gets pulled back over 
and gets classified to the type 1 temporary sign, which are allowed to remain in 
place at all times on any non-residential property.  A type 1 temporary sign can 
be switched out, it can be a feather sign or a little arm sign, which is stuck in the 
ground.  Temporary signs are shown on page 7-10.  Ms. Burris explained these 
were not originally permitted in the steering committee meetings, but after 
discussions, the planning board decided they wanted to recommend allowing 
them.  Mayor Becker noted the size limit on them was eight square feet.  
Councilwoman Krafft mentioned it didn’t specify what the word “temporary” 
meant.  Ms. Burris explained the time limits are listed as max duration in table 
7.1, but with type 1 signs there is no time limit.  While it says temporary, it is only 
temporary in the fact that it’s not attached in the ground.  The rest of them do 
have a time limit.  Ms. Burris explained this goes back to the case law (Supreme 
Court case), the problem with type 1 is that you have a situation where at any 
given time any property can be for sale or you might have a yard that wants to 
have dancer of the month, so you have to treat them all the same, because of the 
case law.  If the town doesn’t want feather flags listed under type 1, the only other 
place it could go is type 2 and you would have to create a whole new type for it.  
Ms. Burris was going to put them in type 2 and realized that still limited it to not 
include commercial uses, it would only be for civic, recreation, and then the corner 
of every intersection in the town limits.  Councilwoman Critz asked if they were 
typically used more for commercial.  Ms. Burris responded everybody seems to 
want to use them.  Some jurisdictions just say, “flat no”, “no, you are not going to 
use them.”  Most of the ones that Ms. Burris works with said “absolutely not”, but 
the planning board did recommend that they be allowed.  Mayor Becker asked if 
it were one per property.  Ms. Burris responded one type 1 sign anywhere on the 
property at any given time.   

o Councilman Countryman made a motion to accept type 1 sign (feather 
flag/shark fin signs) and Councilwoman Coffey seconded.  Councilwoman Critz 
mentioned the LED signs.  Mayor Becker pointed out it wasn’t a type 1 sign, so 
those would be a separate discussion.  Mayor Becker called for a vote on the 
motion.  The motion passed unanimously as follows:  

 
   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 
 Nays:  None 
 

o Mayor Becker referred to the case law and asked Ms. Burris if municipalities are 
allowed to say a school or a church can have an LED sign, but a commercial 
business can’t.  Ms. Burris responded yes, as long as it is based on the land use 
of the parcel that it’s on, but you can’t regulate what it says.  Ms. Burris added, 
you can regulate the zoning district, the land use that’s on the parcel, the size, 
the percentage of the sign that is LED versus the rest of the sign, the brightness, 
the time that it is on, but you can’t regulate what it says.  The case law is that you 
can’t regulate the sign based on the content.  Mayor Becker clarified signs could 
be regulated based on the user, such as, a shopping center has a different set of 
standards for the type of sign they can use, and a school could be different from 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 21 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

a church.  Councilwoman Critz asked if the town could approach it on a case by 
case rather than putting something in the ordinance.  Ms. Burris responded no; it 
has to be addressed in the ordinance as to where that type of sign would be 
allowed.  There is a whole section (page 4-25, section 4.4.3.2) in the ordinance 
dealing with Union County Public Schools with a whole separate set of zoning 
standards that the town agreed to a long time ago.  If the council just wanted to 
allow it for schools, it could go in that section.  If the town wanted to open it to 
schools, civic and other institutional uses, they could do that too.  Ms. Burris 
believed that might have been what the draft was. 

o Councilwoman Critz asked if she could work together with Ms. Jaquith to see if 
there was something the town could come up with.  Ms. Burris responded the 
council was welcome to consider it as a separate thing after the ordinance was 
adopted, because it is basically set up to where it could just be plugged in where 
it needs to go.  Ms. Burris will provide the council with the draft language and the 
starting point, so they can have a separate work session to do that, but she did 
not recommend holding up the entire ordinance for this. 

o Mayor Becker asked if the town could legally use the Union County Public 
Schools language and it could have its own sign regulation that wouldn’t apply to 
any other use.  Ms. Burris responded there was already a section in there (E on 
page 4-27) for signs specific to schools and the town would plug it in right there 
if they just wanted it for the school.  Mayor Becker commented that was the legal 
way it could be allowed only for Union County Public Schools, because that’s who 
that section is applied to.  Mayor Becker added that was a good way of looking 
at a possibility.   

o Councilwoman Coffey explained she knew of a school in Monroe that can’t put 
any kind of identifying sign on the grounds, because it is against the county’s 
regulations.  Everything has to be on the building.  When you have regulations, 
they need to be followed and there are other ways to deal with that.  They could 
put a beautiful spotlight out there, regulate it with a timer to have it come on, or 
whatever they wanted.  Councilwoman Critz commented she was just saying they 
could talk, but that didn’t mean the town was going to change it.  Councilwoman 
Coffey clarified she was just saying the town didn’t need to make provision in this 
ordinance.  Mayor Becker explained the council wasn’t going to add LED tonight, 
but there was a place where it could be.  One of the concerns the town has had 
was that they can’t regulate it, if it was going to be at the school, it was going to 
be at this church, or it was going to be at a grocery store and the council didn’t 
want that to happen, but at least there is a place to put it where it could be 
considered.  Ms. Burris responded the structure is there if the town chooses to.  
Mayor Becker continued if the town ever did allow it, it could be the only LED sign 
in town, and it would be legal to do that. 

o Councilwoman Critz volunteered to dialogue with Ms. Jaquith.  Councilwoman 
Coffey stated she would love to be on hand for that as well. 

o Ms. Burris referred to page 9-9, which dealt with a definition of religious 
institutions.  The previous definition in the ordinance only allowed up to 25 
attendees for daycares, schools or daycares accessory to religious institutions or 
schools even though the town already has one with way more than 25.  The 
planning board recommended removing the cap altogether.   



 
 

Minutes Book 21 22 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

o Councilwoman Coffey made a motion to remove the cap of 25 attendees at 
daycares, schools or daycares accessory to religious institutions or schools and 
Councilman Countryman seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as 
follows: 

 
   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 
 Nays:  None 
 

 Mayor Becker explained that was the last of those recommendations, but he and Ms. 
Brooks had discussed a couple that came to his attention.  There was a change in 
the way building height for slopped roofs was going to be calculated.  Ms. Burris 
responded there were two definitions that were in the ordinance for height and they 
recommending sticking with the one the town already had, which means she would 
strike the one that was contradictory, which also means that she needs to either 
change or remove the diagram in the ordinance, because it doesn’t match them.  Ms. 
Burris stated she would attempt to change it, but they might have some graphic 
issues on that, so if it doesn’t match, it is just going to come out. 

 Ms. Burris noted she already mentioned conditional use permits becoming special 
use permits, because of the statute; all of the statutory references to Chapter 160D 
will be made in any section references in the ordinance and will have to be checked; 
and any typos will be corrected as the ordinance is gone through one more time.  Ms. 
Burris explained those are not substantive changes, but she did want the council to 
be aware that was part of the adoption that is not included in their recommendations.   
Ms. Burris pointed out the planning board, notwithstanding those 11 items, did 
recommend approval of the Mineral Springs Development Ordinance, finding it 
consistent with the adopted Land Use Plan and that it implements portions of the 
plan, specifically strategies to create a Town Center and improve design standards, 
while emphasizing conservation overall.  The proposed ordinance is also consistent 
with current state statutes and best practices. 

 Mayor Becker referred to the residential development types on pages 5-9 and 5-10 
where it is restricted to certain things in certain districts (e.g. AR and RR can’t have 
conventional).  Mayor Becker didn’t believe it was directly addressed in the old 
ordinance, but it was in the vision plan and he was concerned about the new 
ordinance not allowing large lot subdivision in anything but AR and RR.  Mayor 
Becker stated he thought the council would allow it in R20 if somebody had a 20-
acre parcel they wanted to put five lots on…or if the council would say “no”, you can’t 
put those big lots in RA40 or R20.  Mayor Becker asked Ms. Burris and the council 
what they thought.  Ms. Burris responded there would be no problem doing that, but 
she pointed out that large lot subdivision does not have to have paved roads or curb 
and gutter, so the council should think about that being in the R20 district where it is 
typically a more urbanized area, but it’s fine.  Councilwoman Krafft commented she 
thought the goal was to have more wide-open spaces with larger lots.  Mayor Becker 
commented the odds are if they are zoned R20, they are going to go for the higher 
density downtown.  Mayor Becker mentioned the 30-acre Storybook Farm the town 
annexed, which is RA40.  The town would like them to do a large lot subdivision 
instead of one-acre lots, it would be better if that is what they wanted to do.  Ms. 
Burris clarified the council wanted to allow large lot in AR, RR, RA40 and R20.  Mayor 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 23 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

Becker responded that was his suggestion.  The farmhouse group and large lot 
should be allowed across the board in the residential zones in case somebody wants 
to do that.  

 Councilwoman Critz made a motion that we allow large lots in all of our residential 
development areas and Councilman Countryman seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously as follows: 

 
Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 
Nays:  None 

 
 Councilwoman Critz mentioned the concern that Carrington Price had about 

freestanding structures and noted the town should have oversight.  Ms. Burris 
responded under GB in the Table of Uses it requires a special use permit and there 
is an entire page of regulations.  Ms. Brooks pointed out there were also regulations 
in Article 6, page 6.4.13, which tells you those structures have to be in the side and 
rear yard.  Mayor Becker commented that made it even stricter.  The council was 
good with the existing two sets of regulations, which are very stringent.  Ms. Price 
can be told if she needs to know.   

 Mayor Becker referred to the overall ordinance and pointed out the recommendation 
was to adopt what was before the council with the specific changes/provisions that 
have been adopted at this meeting along with the statutory changes.  Ms. Burris 
commented just to make sure the council was meeting the statute, on page 5-5 (of 
the staff report), there were specific options and they would need to read the 
consistency statement that goes with the options.                               

 Councilwoman Coffey made a motion to approve the Unified Development 
Ordinance and it is consistent with the adopted Land Use Plan, the town council finds 
that Mineral Springs Development Ordinance and its associated map amendments 
are consistent with the adopted Land Use Plan in that it implements portions of the 
plan, specifically strategies to create a Town Center and improve design standards, 
while emphasizing conservation overall, the proposed ordinance is also consistent 
with the current state statutes and best practices, the development ordinance will 
become effective on July 12, 2019 and Councilwoman Neill seconded. The motion 
by passed unanimously as follows:  

 
Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 
Nays:  None     

 
 The Mineral Springs Development Ordinance is a standalone ordinance, which is 

herein incorporated into these minutes.     
  
6. Consideration of Amending the Mineral Springs Schedule of Fees 

 Mayor Becker explained this was development ordinance fees, some have been 
increased, and some of them are new.  The schedule of fees is independent of the 
ordinance itself.   

 Councilwoman Critz made a motion to approve the schedule of fees as presented 
and Councilwoman Coffey seconded. The motion by passed unanimously as 
follows:    



 
 

Minutes Book 21 24 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

    Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 
Nays:  None  

   
7. Consideration of Planning Board and Board of Adjustment Appointments 

 Mayor Becker explained the town council had made a decision (for the time being) 
how the boards will be, so Ms. Brooks gave the options for what would happen with 
the planning board and board of adjustment nominations, based on what the decision 
was.  Renee Helms and Steven Capobianco are interested in the planning board, 
but there is only one vacancy on the planning board and two on the board of 
adjustment.  Ms. Brooks explained that Jim Muller was currently shown as an 
alternate on the board of adjustment, but there was a regular seat open.  Ms. Brooks 
asked Mr. Muller if he wanted to become a regular member and if the council wanted 
to move him to that position.    

 Councilwoman Coffey made a motion to appoint Renee Helms to the planning 
board, moving Jim Muller to board of adjustment regular member, to appoint Renee 
Helms and Steven Capobianco to the board of adjustment alternate and 
Councilwoman Cureton seconded. The motion by passed unanimously as follows:  

 
   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 

Nays:  None   
 

 Councilwoman Critz stated she did not want to see the council making any attempts 
to remove members of the council who are serving on the planning board or board 
of adjustment successfully, only because of the last two decades of going to training 
and interacting with the Institute of Government as well.  It may not be the most ideal 
situation in the world, but it is very commonplace in small communities.  
Councilwoman Critz thought in the town’s situation it would render the town in a 
situation where people that are highly skilled, qualified, and beneficial to their post 
were being removed.  Mayor Becker responded he didn’t think the council had 
considered that and with removing the planning board from hearing special use 
permits…  Councilwoman Critz added that it was just something that Ms. Burris had 
brought up in her statement.  Mayor Becker continued “there are no conflicts”.  Ms. 
Burris responded, “it is much less of a problem now.”     

      
8. Consideration of 2018-2019 Audit Contract 

 Mayor Becker explained the Local Government Commission approves this contract; 
the council has approved the price already (in the budget) in the amount of $4,730.  

 Councilwoman Coffey made a motion to and Councilwoman Critz seconded. The 
motion by passed unanimously as follows:   
   

   Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft and Neill 
Nays:  None 

 
9. Staff Reports 

 Mayor Becker mentioned the letter from Mayor Horvath in Wesley Chapel that was 
accompanied by a resolution that they passed (which was passed out to the council 
prior to the meeting).  Mayor Becker explained it was probably something the council 



 
 

Minutes Book 21 25 July 11, 2019 - Draft
 
 

wants to look it.  There was a consensus of the council for staff to get a similar 
resolution prepared for their consideration next month.  Mayor Becker explained that 
Wesley Chapel had been concerned about some recent development where 
developers are now coming into these pieces of property in between Mineral Springs, 
Wesley Chapel, and Weddington – properties that are not in those towns - and the 
county is suddenly approving very high density subdivisions in these 300 acre 
parcels between Mineral Springs and Wesley Chapel where you have one acre lots, 
and they are approving massive high density subdivision.  The town council in 
Wesley Chapel has adopted a resolution directed to the county commissioners to 
slow down and take a look at whether that is an appropriate thing to be doing when 
these municipalities have worked so hard to try to get some coherence.   Wesley 
Chapel adopted a resolution and sent it to other towns (including Mineral Springs) 
suggesting they adopt one as well.    
            

10. Other Business 
 Councilwoman Critz explained every year there is a month in the year that is town 

clerk appreciation month and tonight the council was officially giving Vicky a little 
token of their gratitude and appreciation.  The town council thanked Ms. Brooks.  
Councilwoman Neill mentioned the token was from the council personally and not 
the town.  Ms. Brooks thanked the council.   

 Councilwoman Krafft asked if there was anything the council needed to know about 
the festival; there is only one more meeting before it.  Ms. Brooks didn’t have any 
updates. 

 Councilwoman Cureton invited everyone to go out to the Western Union Community 
Park. 

      
11. Adjournment 

 Councilwoman Coffey made a motion to adjourn and Councilwoman Critz 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously as follows: 
   
  Ayes:  Coffey, Countryman, Critz, Cureton, Krafft, and Neill 

Nays:  None 
 

 The meeting was adjourned at 9:53 p.m. 
 The next regular meeting will be on Thursday, August 8, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. at the 

Mineral Springs Town Hall. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
 
          
Vicky A. Brooks, CMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk   Frederick Becker III, Mayor  
 





Mineral Springs Prior Years Property Tax Report

June 2019

June 30, 2019 2011 2010 2009

BEGINNING CHARGE $64,878.42 $64,737.60 $63,911.13

PUBLIC UTILITIES $1,319.20 $1,251.60 $1,218.28

MINIMAL RELEASES ($145.21) ($152.88) ($157.18)

DISCOVERIES $61.82 $321.61 $46.46

ABATEMENTS (RELEASES) ($301.25) ($473.88) ($136.74)

TOTAL CHARGE $65,812.98 $65,684.05 $64,881.95

PREVIOUS COLLECTIONS $65,722.65 $65,599.00 $64,765.62

PREVIOUS BALANCE DUE $90.33 $85.05 $116.33 $291.71

COLLECTIONS - TAX $27.68 $27.68 $55.60 $110.96

COLLECTIONS - INTEREST/FEES $22.59 $23.86 $222.34 $268.79

GROSS MONTHLY COLLECTIONS $0.00

MISC. ADJUSTMENTS

TOTAL TAX COLLECTED TO DATE $65,750.33 $65,626.68 $64,821.22

BALANCE OUTSTANDING $62.65 $57.37 $60.73 $180.75

PERCENTAGE COLLECTED 99.90% 99.91% 99.91%

Prepared by Janet Ridings 6/30/19 Page 1



Mineral Springs Unpaid Property Taxes - Real and Personal as of June 30, 2019

Name Tax Map Number 2011 2010 2009 Total

$6.8850103059CAROLINA STREET SUPPLY
$6.88848391CAROLINA STREET SUPPLY, SHEPPARD JONATHAN

$10.441812652COOMBER CUSTOM MASONRY LLC
$2.6350100863DUNCAN, ROBERT W

$24.00$24.00$24.0006060006EELLIOTT, JAMES EDWARD & MARIO JAMES ELLIOTT &
$10.4650094704EPIC REALTY GROUP INC

$2.09$2.4150093623FATHER & SON PAINTERS
$2.22455325MATHENY, VERNA

$2.44$2.2250094323METHENY, VERNA
$2.7550104497ROBERTO BONILLA CUSTOM FRAMING

$19.11$19.11$19.1105033179WILLIAMS, RUTH & HUSBAND J C WILLIAMS

Total $62.65 $57.37 $60.73 $180.75

Tuesday, July 30, 2019 Page 1 of 1





This report contains both “Cash” and “Including Receivables/Payables”

The “Cash” reports include
. The “Including Receivables/Payables” reports include items that accrue to

Therefore, the “Including Receivables/Payables” reports should represent the most
fiscal year’s activity.

a “June”
column, representing cash transactions that occurred in the month of June, and a “June
a/r” (accounts receivable) or “June a/p” (accounts payable) colum



7/1/2018-
Category 6/30/2019

    Interest Income 9,328.59

    Other Inc

        Copy Charges 2.00

        Festival 2019

            Sponsor 250.00

            Vendor 170.00

            TOTAL Festival 2019 420.00

        Festival2018

            sponsor 1,250.00

            vendor 455.00

            TOTAL Festival2018 1,705.00

        Sales Tax Refunds 759.03

        Zoning 3,793.92

        TOTAL Other Inc 6,679.95

    Prop Tax 2018

        Receipts 2018

            Int 151.91

            Tax 66,963.55

            TOTAL Receipts 2018 67,115.46

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2018 67,115.46

    Prop Tax 2019

        Receipts 2019

            Tax 12.17

            TOTAL Receipts 2019 12.17

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2019 12.17

    Prop Tax Prior Years

        Prop Tax 2009

            Receipts 2009

                Int 222.34

                Tax 55.60

                TOTAL Receipts 2009 277.94

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2009 277.94

        Prop Tax 2010

            Receipts 2010

                Int 23.86

                Tax 27.68

                TOTAL Receipts 2010 51.54

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2010 51.54

        Prop Tax 2011

            Receipts 2011

                Int 22.59

                Tax 27.68

                TOTAL Receipts 2011 50.27

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2011 50.27

        Prop Tax 2012

            Receipts 2012

                Int 20.65

                Tax 37.71

                TOTAL Receipts 2012 58.36

Cash Flow Report FY2018 YTD Incl. rec/pybl
7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 1



7/1/2018-
Category 6/30/2019

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2012 58.36

        Prop Tax 2013

            Receipts 2013

                Int 28.78

                Tax 81.01

                TOTAL Receipts 2013 109.79

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2013 109.79

        Prop Tax 2014

            Receipts 2014

                Int 46.20

                Tax 111.53

                TOTAL Receipts 2014 157.73

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2014 157.73

        Prop Tax 2015

            Receipts 2015

                Int 49.98

                Tax 140.10

                TOTAL Receipts 2015 190.08

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2015 190.08

        Prop Tax 2016

            Receipts2016

                Int 25.24

                Tax 130.08

                TOTAL Receipts2016 155.32

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2016 155.32

        Prop Tax 2017

            Receipts2017

                Int 23.01

                Tax 289.43

                TOTAL Receipts2017 312.44

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2017 312.44

        TOTAL Prop Tax Prior Years 1,363.47

    Sales Tax

        Beer& Wine Tax 13,017.18

        Cable TV 20,159.91

        Electricity 209,124.86

        Natural Gas Excise 1,219.48

        Sales & Use Dist 23,454.21

        telecommunications 3,977.71

        TOTAL Sales Tax 270,953.35

    Veh Tax

        Int 2018 67.51

        Tax 2018 7,776.51

        TOTAL Veh Tax 7,844.02

    Ads 760.28

    Attorney 4,230.56

    Audit 4,850.00

    Capital Outlay

Cash Flow Report FY2018 YTD Incl. rec/pybl
7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 2



7/1/2018-
Category 6/30/2019

        Equipment 6,405.00

        TOTAL Capital Outlay 6,405.00

    Charities & Agencies 8,500.00

    Community

        Greenway 875.00

        Maint 6,222.02

        Newsletter

            Post 638.67

            Printing 1,207.56

            TOTAL Newsletter 1,846.23

        Parks & Rec

            Park 3,213.57

            TOTAL Parks & Rec 3,213.57

        Special Events

            Festival 5,318.55

            Services 4,000.00

            TOTAL Special Events 9,318.55

        TOTAL Community 21,475.37

    Emp

        Benefits

            Dental 936.00

            Life 624.96

            NCLGERS 12,595.92

            Vision 168.00

            TOTAL Benefits 14,324.88

        Bond 650.00

        FICA

            Med 1,759.55

            Soc Sec 7,521.79

            TOTAL FICA 9,281.34

        Payroll 1,793.00

        Unemp 38.92

        Work Comp 2,135.96

        TOTAL Emp 28,224.10

    Fire Protection 12,000.00

    Office

        Bank 0.00

        Clerk 36,288.00

        Council 10,800.00

        Deputy Clerk 10,017.45

        Dues 6,687.00

        Equip 781.93

        Finance Officer

            Regular 33,516.00

            TOTAL Finance Officer 33,516.00

        Ins 3,164.45

        Maint

            Materials 1,240.74

            Service 7,600.16

            TOTAL Maint 8,840.90

        Mayor 4,800.00

Cash Flow Report FY2018 YTD Incl. rec/pybl
7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 3



7/1/2018-
Category 6/30/2019

        Misc 183.18

        Post 1,249.70

        Records 4,800.00

        Supplies 3,496.02

        Tel 6,671.23

        Util 5,409.63

        TOTAL Office 136,705.49

    Planning

        Administration

            Contract 1,117.91

            Salaries 31,368.00

            TOTAL Administration 32,485.91

        Annexation 52.00

        Misc 1,266.00

        Ordinance Changes 22,548.89

        TOTAL Planning 56,352.80

    Street Lighting 1,375.16

    Tax Coll

        Contract 1,254.97

        Sal 600.00

        TOTAL Tax Coll 1,854.97

    Training

        Officials 177.28

        Staff 994.00

        TOTAL Training 1,171.28

    Travel 2,514.89

    FROM Check Min Spgs 90,000.00

    FROM MM Sav ParkSterling 210,000.00

    TO Check Min Spgs -10,000.00

    TO MM Sav ParkSterling -90,000.00

    TO South State CD -200,000.00

Cash Flow Report FY2018 YTD Incl. rec/pybl
7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 4



7/1/2018-
Category 6/30/2019

    Interest Income 9,328.59

    Other Inc

        Copy Charges 2.00

        Festival 2019

            Sponsor 250.00

            Vendor 170.00

            TOTAL Festival 2019 420.00

        Festival2018

            sponsor 1,250.00

            vendor 455.00

            TOTAL Festival2018 1,705.00

        Sales Tax Refunds 759.03

        Zoning 3,793.92

        TOTAL Other Inc 6,679.95

    Prop Tax 2018

        Receipts 2018

            Int 145.87

            Tax 66,861.51

            TOTAL Receipts 2018 67,007.38

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2018 67,007.38

    Prop Tax Prior Years

        Prop Tax 2009

            Receipts 2009

                Int 222.34

                Tax 55.60

                TOTAL Receipts 2009 277.94

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2009 277.94

        Prop Tax 2010

            Receipts 2010

                Int 23.86

                Tax 27.68

                TOTAL Receipts 2010 51.54

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2010 51.54

        Prop Tax 2011

            Receipts 2011

                Int 22.59

                Tax 27.68

                TOTAL Receipts 2011 50.27

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2011 50.27

        Prop Tax 2012

            Receipts 2012

                Int 20.65

                Tax 37.71

                TOTAL Receipts 2012 58.36

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2012 58.36

        Prop Tax 2013

            Receipts 2013

                Int 28.78

                Tax 81.01

Cash Flow Report FY2018 YTD CASH
7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 1



7/1/2018-
Category 6/30/2019

                TOTAL Receipts 2013 109.79

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2013 109.79

        Prop Tax 2014

            Receipts 2014

                Int 46.20

                Tax 111.53

                TOTAL Receipts 2014 157.73

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2014 157.73

        Prop Tax 2015

            Receipts 2015

                Int 49.82

                Tax 135.17

                TOTAL Receipts 2015 184.99

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2015 184.99

        Prop Tax 2016

            Receipts2016

                Int 23.99

                Tax 124.83

                TOTAL Receipts2016 148.82

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2016 148.82

        Prop Tax 2017

            Receipts2017

                Int 21.99

                Tax 280.49

                TOTAL Receipts2017 302.48

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2017 302.48

        TOTAL Prop Tax Prior Years 1,341.92

    Sales Tax

        Beer& Wine Tax 13,017.18

        Cable TV 15,209.91

        Electricity 158,824.86

        Natural Gas Excise 979.48

        Sales & Use Dist 19,336.45

        telecommunications 2,927.71

        TOTAL Sales Tax 210,295.59

    Veh Tax

        Int 2018 61.49

        Tax 2018 7,021.69

        TOTAL Veh Tax 7,083.18

    Ads 598.60

    Attorney 4,230.56

    Audit 4,850.00

    Capital Outlay

        Equipment 6,405.00

        TOTAL Capital Outlay 6,405.00

    Charities & Agencies 8,500.00

    Community

        Greenway 875.00

Cash Flow Report FY2018 YTD CASH
7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 2



7/1/2018-
Category 6/30/2019

        Maint 5,547.02

        Newsletter

            Post 638.67

            Printing 1,207.56

            TOTAL Newsletter 1,846.23

        Parks & Rec

            Park 3,003.27

            TOTAL Parks & Rec 3,003.27

        Special Events

            Festival 5,318.55

            Services 4,000.00

            TOTAL Special Events 9,318.55

        TOTAL Community 20,590.07

    Emp

        Benefits

            Dental 936.00

            Life 624.96

            NCLGERS 12,595.92

            Vision 168.00

            TOTAL Benefits 14,324.88

        Bond 650.00

        FICA

            Med 1,759.55

            Soc Sec 7,521.79

            TOTAL FICA 9,281.34

        Payroll 1,793.00

        Unemp 38.92

        Work Comp 2,135.96

        TOTAL Emp 28,224.10

    Fire Protection 12,000.00

    Office

        Bank 0.00

        Clerk 36,288.00

        Council 10,800.00

        Deputy Clerk 10,017.45

        Dues 6,687.00

        Equip 781.93

        Finance Officer

            Regular 33,516.00

            TOTAL Finance Officer 33,516.00

        Ins 3,164.45

        Maint

            Materials 1,240.74

            Service 7,600.16

            TOTAL Maint 8,840.90

        Mayor 4,800.00

        Misc 183.18

        Post 749.70

        Records 4,800.00

        Supplies 3,282.50

        Tel 6,671.23

Cash Flow Report FY2018 YTD CASH
7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 3



7/1/2018-
Category 6/30/2019

        Util 5,174.95

        TOTAL Office 135,757.29

    Planning

        Administration

            Contract 1,117.91

            Salaries 31,368.00

            TOTAL Administration 32,485.91

        Annexation 52.00

        Misc 1,266.00

        Ordinance Changes 21,802.17

        TOTAL Planning 55,606.08

    Street Lighting 1,266.28

    Tax Coll

        Contract 1,230.38

        Sal 600.00

        TOTAL Tax Coll 1,830.38

    Training

        Officials 177.28

        Staff 994.00

        TOTAL Training 1,171.28

    Travel 2,289.27

    FROM Check Min Spgs 90,000.00

    FROM MM Sav ParkSterling 210,000.00

    TO Check Min Spgs -10,000.00

    TO MM Sav ParkSterling -90,000.00

    TO South State CD -200,000.00

Cash Flow Report FY2018 YTD CASH
7/1/2018 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 4



6/29/2018 6/30/2018 7/31/2018 8/31/2018 9/30/2018 10/31/2018 11/30/2018
Account Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance

        Check Min Spgs 47,680.60 47,680.60 11,222.46 4,850.38 46,601.76 33,551.59 15,670.42

        McNeely Farms Escrow 21,227.31 21,234.35 21,243.66 21,252.68 21,260.83 21,270.44 21,279.18

        MM Sav ParkSterling 698,668.46 699,007.27 699,558.82 490,036.59 490,374.92 490,882.76 491,366.92

        NCCMT_Cash 2,275.08 2,278.29 2,281.77 2,285.28 2,288.76 2,292.70 2,296.63

        South State CD 0.00 0.00 0.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 200,983.01

        State Revenues Receivable 0.00 61,440.37 58,704.79 56,821.56 0.00 0.00 0.00

        Accounts Payable 692.76 1,694.64 692.76 692.76 692.76 692.76 692.76

        Escrows 21,195.00 21,195.00 21,195.00 21,195.00 21,195.00 21,195.00 21,195.00

Account Balances History Report - As of 6/30/2019
(Includes unrealized gains)

7/30/2019 Page 1



12/31/2018 1/31/2019 2/28/2019 3/31/2019 4/30/2019 5/31/2019 6/30/2019
Account Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance

        Check Min Spgs 34,697.60 36,455.05 25,724.85 33,300.44 20,409.06 20,064.05 37,208.20

        McNeely Farms Escrow 21,288.27 21,297.31 21,305.48 21,313.94 21,323.28 21,332.34 21,340.52

        MM Sav ParkSterling 551,893.35 552,455.83 552,964.39 583,502.45 584,116.33 584,711.65 585,249.91

        NCCMT_Cash 2,300.85 2,305.28 2,309.28 2,313.76 2,318.12 2,322.61 2,326.88

        South State CD 200,983.01 200,983.01 201,970.86 201,970.86 201,970.86 202,931.19 202,931.19

        State Revenues Receivable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 61,560.40

        Accounts Payable 692.76 692.76 692.76 692.76 692.76 692.76 3,793.75

        Escrows 21,195.00 21,195.00 21,195.00 21,195.00 21,195.00 21,195.00 21,195.00

Account Balances History Report - As of 6/30/2019
(Includes unrealized gains)

7/30/2019 Page 2



Mineral Springs Monthly Revenue Summary 2018-2019

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS

REVENUE SUMMARY 2018-2019 (Estimated Amounts in RED)

Property Tax - prior 1,000.00$ (363.47)$ 1,363.47$ 136.3% -$ 74.07$ 77.25$ 28.25$ 11.72$
Property Tax - 2018 66,005.00$ (1,110.46)$ 67,115.46$ 101.7% -$ -$ 190.13$ 3,154.99$ 2,466.96$
Dupl. Property Tax -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Fund Balance Approp. -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Gross Receipts Tax -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Interest 1,800.00$ (7,528.59)$ 9,328.59$ 518.3% 564.34$ 490.30$ 349.96$ 521.39$ 1,479.84$
Sales Tax - Electric 207,000.00$ (2,124.86)$ 209,124.86$ 101.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Sales Tax - Sales & Use 22,100.00$ (1,354.21)$ 23,454.21$ 106.1% -$ -$ 2,058.11$ 1,802.46$ 1,943.05$
Sales Tax - Other Util. 25,700.00$ 342.90$ 25,357.10$ 98.7% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Sales Tax - Alc. Bev. 13,100.00$ 82.82$ 13,017.18$ 99.4% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

 Vehicle Taxes 7,285.00$ (559.02)$ 7,844.02$ 107.7% -$ 717.25$ 795.07$ -$ 511.68$
Zoning Fees 3,000.00$ (793.92)$ 3,793.92$ 126.5% 460.00$ 343.92$ 60.00$ 225.00$ 25.00$
Other 3,000.00$ 101.80$ 2,898.20$ 96.6% 65.00$ 1,380.00$ 260.00$ 2.00$ -$

Property Tax - prior 53.19$ 103.05$ 70.52$ 433.85$ 167.97$ 295.65$ 26.40$ 21.55$
Property Tax - 2018 30,618.80$ 19,170.18$ 7,679.82$ 2,608.69$ 587.71$ 391.22$ 138.88$ 108.08$
Dupl. Property Tax -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Fund Balance Approp. -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Gross Receipts Tax -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Interest 539.74$ 575.95$ 1,508.58$ 551.00$ 627.58$ 1,569.20$ 550.71$ -$
Sales Tax - Electric 61,004.46$ -$ -$ 48,533.62$ -$ -$ 49,286.78$ 50,300.00$
Sales Tax - Sales & Use 1,928.29$ 1,903.16$ 2,020.60$ 2,048.10$ 1,694.33$ 1,763.18$ 2,175.17$ 4,117.76$
Sales Tax - Other Util. 6,091.53$ -$ -$ 6,153.88$ -$ -$ 6,871.69$ 6,240.00$
Sales Tax - Alc. Bev. -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 13,017.18$ -$ -$

 Vehicle Taxes 1,163.05$ 575.45$ 614.54$ 578.83$ 648.92$ 706.32$ 772.07$ 760.84$
Zoning Fees 495.00$ 585.00$ 100.00$ 400.00$ 600.00$ 175.00$ 325.00$ -$
Other -$ -$ 759.03$ -$ -$ 145.00$ 275.00$ 12.17$

Prepared by Rick Becker 7/29/2019 Page 1



Mineral Springs Budget Comparison 2018-2019

TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS

BUDGET COMPARISON 2018-2019

Advertising 1,800.00$ 1,039.72$ 760.28$ 42.2% -$ 139.40$ -$ -$ -$
Attorney 9,600.00$ 5,369.44$ 4,230.56$ 44.1% 300.00$ 300.00$ 930.56$ 300.00$ 300.00$
Audit 4,850.00$ -$ 4,850.00$ 100.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ 4,850.00$
Charities & Agencies 10,300.00$ 1,800.00$ 8,500.00$ 82.5% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Community Projects 26,000.00$ 4,524.63$ 21,475.37$ 82.6% 4,439.55$ 1,729.03$ 3,258.44$ 2,724.74$ 395.96$
Contingency 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ -$ 0.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Employee Overhead 28,500.00$ 275.90$ 28,224.10$ 99.0% 4,828.46$ 2,096.89$ 2,089.34$ 2,121.38$ 2,125.82$
Elections -$ -$ -$ 0.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Fire Protection 12,000.00$ -$ 12,000.00$ 100.0% -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Office & Administrative 144,704.00$ 7,998.51$ 136,705.49$ 94.5% 24,782.51$ 9,920.59$ 10,269.60$ 10,221.88$ 9,200.25$
Planning & Zoning 56,368.00$ 15.20$ 56,352.80$ 100.0% 3,041.00$ 4,614.00$ 2,614.00$ 2,870.07$ 5,364.00$
Street Lighting 2,000.00$ 624.84$ 1,375.16$ 68.8% -$ 136.55$ 135.58$ 113.45$ 113.45$
Tax Collection 2,450.00$ 595.03$ 1,854.97$ 75.7% 50.00$ 68.71$ 74.57$ 97.75$ 100.10$
Training 3,000.00$ 1,828.72$ 1,171.28$ 39.0% 455.00$ 908.00$ (908.00)$ 177.28$ 390.00$
Travel 4,200.00$ 1,685.11$ 2,514.89$ 59.9% 820.32$ 857.38$ 46.65$ (363.68)$ -$

Capital Outlay 41,218.00$ 34,813.00$ 6,405.00$ 15.5% -$ -$ -$ -$

Tax Refunds -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Interfund Transfers -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

Prepared by Rick Becker 7/29/2019 Page 1



Mineral Springs Budget Comparison 2018-2019

Advertising 54.72$ -$ -$ 404.48$ -$ -$ -$ 161.68$
Attorney 300.00$ 300.00$ 300.00$ 300.00$ 300.00$ 300.00$ 300.00$ -$
Audit -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Charities & Agencies -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 8,500.00$ -$
Community Projects 879.71$ 1,226.10$ 1,737.46$ 1,606.08$ 744.05$ 1,394.40$ 454.55$ 885.30$
Contingency -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Employee Overhead 2,098.22$ 2,259.55$ 2,093.92$ 2,092.60$ 2,120.22$ 2,196.18$ 2,101.52$ -$
Elections -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Fire Protection -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 12,000.00$ -$
Office & Administrative 9,255.88$ 12,022.65$ 9,652.47$ 10,360.51$ 10,711.27$ 9,630.25$ 9,729.43$ 948.20$
Planning & Zoning 2,614.00$ 3,862.97$ 7,862.44$ 7,840.34$ 2,632.92$ 2,999.17$ 9,291.17$ 746.72$
Street Lighting -$ 222.85$ -$ 217.76$ -$ 217.76$ 108.88$ 108.88$
Tax Collection 544.75$ 359.13$ 185.08$ 108.47$ 81.85$ 83.07$ 76.90$ 24.59$
Training -$ 149.00$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Travel 174.86$ 177.14$ 143.34$ 251.14$ -$ 17.73$ 164.39$ 225.62$

Capital Outlay 6,405.00$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

Tax Refunds -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$
Interfund Transfers -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

Prepared by Rick Becker 7/29/2019 Page 2



6/2/2019-
Category 6/30/2019

    Interest Income 550.71

    Other Inc

        Festival 2019

            Sponsor 250.00

            Vendor 25.00

            TOTAL Festival 2019 275.00

        Zoning 325.00

        TOTAL Other Inc 600.00

    Prop Tax 2018

        Receipts 2018

            Int 10.97

            Tax 235.99

            TOTAL Receipts 2018 246.96

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2018 246.96

    Prop Tax 2019

        Receipts 2019

            Tax 12.17

            TOTAL Receipts 2019 12.17

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2019 12.17

    Prop Tax Prior Years

        Prop Tax 2014

            Receipts 2014

                Int 1.13

                Tax 1.21

                TOTAL Receipts 2014 2.34

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2014 2.34

        Prop Tax 2015

            Receipts 2015

                Int 0.16

                Tax 4.93

                TOTAL Receipts 2015 5.09

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2015 5.09

        Prop Tax 2016

            Receipts2016

                Int 1.25

                Tax 5.25

                TOTAL Receipts2016 6.50

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2016 6.50

        Prop Tax 2017

            Receipts2017

                Int 1.39

                Tax 32.63

                TOTAL Receipts2017 34.02

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2017 34.02

        TOTAL Prop Tax Prior Years 47.95

    Sales Tax

        Cable TV 10,114.54

        Electricity 99,586.78

        Natural Gas Excise 978.71

June 2019 Cash Flow Incl. Paybl/Recvbl
6/2/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 1



6/2/2019-
Category 6/30/2019

        Sales & Use Dist 6,292.93

        telecommunications 2,018.44

        TOTAL Sales Tax 118,991.40

    Veh Tax

        Int 2018 12.55

        Tax 2018 1,520.36

        TOTAL Veh Tax 1,532.91

    Ads 161.68

    Attorney 300.00

    Charities & Agencies 8,500.00

    Community

        Greenway 125.00

        Maint 675.00

        Parks & Rec

            Park 459.85

            TOTAL Parks & Rec 459.85

        Special Events

            Festival 80.00

            TOTAL Special Events 80.00

        TOTAL Community 1,339.85

    Emp

        Benefits

            Dental 78.00

            Life 52.08

            NCLGERS 1,049.66

            Vision 14.00

            TOTAL Benefits 1,193.74

        FICA

            Med 145.91

            Soc Sec 623.72

            TOTAL FICA 769.63

        Payroll 138.15

        TOTAL Emp 2,101.52

    Fire Protection 12,000.00

    Office

        Clerk 3,024.00

        Council 900.00

        Deputy Clerk 784.72

        Finance Officer

            Regular 2,793.00

            TOTAL Finance Officer 2,793.00

        Maint

            Materials 119.88

            Service 553.00

            TOTAL Maint 672.88

        Mayor 400.00

        Misc 183.18

        Post 500.00

June 2019 Cash Flow Incl. Paybl/Recvbl
6/2/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 2



6/2/2019-
Category 6/30/2019

        Supplies 545.71

        Tel 432.67

        Util 441.47

        TOTAL Office 10,677.63

    Planning

        Administration

            Salaries 2,614.00

            TOTAL Administration 2,614.00

        Ordinance Changes 7,423.89

        TOTAL Planning 10,037.89

    Street Lighting 217.76

    Tax Coll

        Contract 51.49

        Sal 50.00

        TOTAL Tax Coll 101.49

    Travel 390.01

June 2019 Cash Flow Incl. Paybl/Recvbl
6/2/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 3



6/1/2019-
Category 6/30/2019

    Interest Income 550.71

    Other Inc

        Festival 2019

            Sponsor 250.00

            Vendor 25.00

            TOTAL Festival 2019 275.00

        Zoning 325.00

        TOTAL Other Inc 600.00

    Prop Tax 2018

        Receipts 2018

            Int 4.93

            Tax 133.95

            TOTAL Receipts 2018 138.88

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2018 138.88

    Prop Tax Prior Years

        Prop Tax 2014

            Receipts 2014

                Int 1.13

                Tax 1.21

                TOTAL Receipts 2014 2.34

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2014 2.34

        Prop Tax 2015

            Receipts 2015

                Int 0.00

                Tax 0.00

                TOTAL Receipts 2015 0.00

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2015 0.00

        Prop Tax 2016

            Receipts2016

                Int 0.00

                Tax 0.00

                TOTAL Receipts2016 0.00

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2016 0.00

        Prop Tax 2017

            Receipts2017

                Int 0.37

                Tax 23.69

                TOTAL Receipts2017 24.06

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2017 24.06

        TOTAL Prop Tax Prior Years 26.40

    Sales Tax

        Cable TV 5,164.54

        Electricity 49,286.78

        Natural Gas Excise 738.71

        Sales & Use Dist 2,175.17

        telecommunications 968.44

        TOTAL Sales Tax 58,333.64

    Veh Tax

        Int 2018 6.53

June 2019 Cash Flow Report - Cash - Jun 2019
6/1/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 1



6/1/2019-
Category 6/30/2019

        Tax 2018 765.54

        TOTAL Veh Tax 772.07

    Attorney 300.00

    Charities & Agencies 8,500.00

    Community

        Greenway 125.00

        Parks & Rec

            Park 249.55

            TOTAL Parks & Rec 249.55

        Special Events

            Festival 80.00

            TOTAL Special Events 80.00

        TOTAL Community 454.55

    Emp

        Benefits

            Dental 78.00

            Life 52.08

            NCLGERS 1,049.66

            Vision 14.00

            TOTAL Benefits 1,193.74

        FICA

            Med 145.91

            Soc Sec 623.72

            TOTAL FICA 769.63

        Payroll 138.15

        TOTAL Emp 2,101.52

    Fire Protection 12,000.00

    Office

        Clerk 3,024.00

        Council 900.00

        Deputy Clerk 784.72

        Finance Officer

            Regular 2,793.00

            TOTAL Finance Officer 2,793.00

        Maint

            Materials 119.88

            Service 553.00

            TOTAL Maint 672.88

        Mayor 400.00

        Misc 183.18

        Supplies 332.19

        Tel 432.67

        Util 206.79

        TOTAL Office 9,729.43

    Planning

        Administration

            Salaries 2,614.00

            TOTAL Administration 2,614.00

June 2019 Cash Flow Report - Cash - Jun 2019
6/1/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 2



6/1/2019-
Category 6/30/2019

        Ordinance Changes 6,677.17

        TOTAL Planning 9,291.17

    Street Lighting 108.88

    Tax Coll

        Contract 26.90

        Sal 50.00

        TOTAL Tax Coll 76.90

    Travel 164.39

June 2019 Cash Flow Report - Cash - Jun 2019
6/1/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 3



Date Num Description Memo Category Clr Amount

    6/4/2019 5619 Benchmark CMR, Inc. I/N 1580 Ordinance ... Planning:Ordinance Changes R -5,187.50

    6/4/2019 562... Municipal Insurance ...6/19 (FY2018) Emp:Benefits:Life R -52.08

6/19 (FY2018) Emp:Benefits:Dental R -78.00

6/19 (FY2018) Emp:Benefits:Vision R -14.00

    6/4/2019 5621 Clark, Griffin & McC... I/N 6861 6/19 (FY20... Attorney R -300.00

    6/6/2019 EFT Debit Card (Staples) Paper (FY2018) Office:Supplies R -78.97

    6/10/2019 EFT...Union County FY2018 - May Prop Tax 2018:Receipts 2018:Tax R 133.95

FY2018 - May Prop Tax 2018:Receipts 2018:Int R 4.93

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2017:R... R 23.69

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2017:R... R 0.37

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2016:R... R 0.00

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2016:R... R 0.00

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2015:R... R 0.00

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2015:R... R 0.00

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2014:R... R 1.21

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax 2014:R... R 1.13

FY2018 - May Tax Coll:Contract R -2.48

    6/11/2019 5622 Bucket, Mop, And Br... I/N CTBCom-1153 j... Office:Maint:Service R -188.00

    6/11/2019 562... Xerox Corporation FY2018 Office:Supplies R -84.49

FY2018 Planning:Ordinance Changes R -677.86

    6/11/2019 5624 Xerox Corporation I/N 097016241 (FY2... Office:Supplies R -18.90

    6/11/2019 5625 Union County Public... 84361*00 (FY2018) Office:Util R -26.89

    6/11/2019 5626 Union County Public... 91052*00 (FY2018) Community:Parks & Rec:Park R -10.65

    6/11/2019 5627 Subscriber Renewals 0324801 E-J subscri... Office:Misc R -183.18

    6/11/2019 562... Taylor & Sons Mowi... FY2018 Office:Maint:Service R -365.00

5/1/19 FY2018 Community:Greenway R -125.00

    6/11/2019 5629 R.C.S., Inc. I/N 107439 Park Re... Community:Parks & Rec:Park R -200.00

    6/11/2019 EFT Debit Card (AOL) AOL Troubleshootin... Office:Tel R -7.99

    6/15/2019 EFT Debit Card (Lowe's) Picnic Table & Fenc... Community:Parks & Rec:Park R -38.90

    6/17/2019 EFT...NC Department of R... FY2018 Sales Tax:Electricity R 49,286.78

FY2018 Sales Tax:Cable TV R 5,164.54

FY2018 Sales Tax:telecommunications R 968.44

FY2018 Sales Tax:Natural Gas Excise R 738.71

    6/17/2019 EFT NC Department of R... Sales & Use 4/19 (F... Sales Tax:Sales & Use Dist R 2,175.17

    6/17/2019 5630 Windstream 061348611 (FY2018) Office:Tel R -322.03

    6/17/2019 5631 Duke Power 2035221941 (FY2018)Street Lighting R -108.88

    6/17/2019 5632 Duke Power 1803784140 (FY2018)Office:Util R -157.68

    6/17/2019 5633 Duke Power 1819573779 (Old Sc...Office:Util R -22.22

    6/17/2019 5634 National Pen Cust No. 17707868 I...Community:Special Events:Festival R -80.00

    6/17/2019 5635 Mineral Springs Vol... Paper Towel reimbu... Office:Maint:Materials R -119.88

    6/17/2019 5636 Catawba Lands Con... Corporate Sponsors... Charities & Agencies R -2,500.00

    6/17/2019 5637 Turning Point FY2018-19 Contribu... Charities & Agencies R -2,000.00

    6/17/2019 5638 American Red Cross Contribution FY2018...Charities & Agencies -2,000.00

    6/17/2019 5639 Council On Aging In ...FY2018-19 Contribu... Charities & Agencies -2,000.00

    6/17/2019 5640 Mineral Springs Vol... Fire Suppression Ag... Fire Protection R -10,000.00

    6/17/2019 5641 Waxhaw Comm. Vol... Fire Suppression Co... Fire Protection R -2,000.00

    6/17/2019 DE... Deposit FY2018 Other Inc:Festival 2019:Vendor R 25.00

FY2018 Other Inc:Zoning R 250.00

FY2018 Travel R 17.73

    6/19/2019 EFT Debit Card (Signson... Order #76862186 Z... Planning:Ordinance Changes R -235.36

    6/24/2019 EFT...Union County {NCV... NCVTS 1905 FY2018 Veh Tax:Tax 2018 R 763.05

Register Report - Jun 2019
6/1/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/30/2019 Page 1



Date Num Description Memo Category Clr Amount

NCVTS 1905 FY2018 Veh Tax:Int 2018 R 6.53

NCVTS Refunds 19... Veh Tax:Tax 2018 R 0.49

NCVTS SOAP Refu... Veh Tax:Tax 2018 R 2.00

FY2018 Tax Coll:Contract R -24.42

    6/24/2019 DE... Deposit FY2018 Other Inc:Festival 2019:Sponsor R 250.00

FY2018 Other Inc:Zoning R 25.00

    6/25/2019 EFT Point And Pay Zoning Permit 06-06... Other Inc:Zoning R 50.00

    6/25/2019 5642 Frederick Becker III 3/19 - 4/19 reimburs... Travel -182.12

    6/25/2019 5643 Verizon Wireless 221474588-00001 (... Office:Tel -102.65

    6/27/2019 EFT...Paychex Salary 6/19 (FY2018) Office:Clerk R -2,842.56

Supplement 6/19 (F... Office:Clerk R 0.00

Hours 6/19 (FY2018) Office:Deputy Clerk R -645.60

Add'l Hours 6/19 (F... Office:Deputy Clerk R -139.12

Salary 6/19 (FY2018) Office:Finance Officer:Regular R -2,625.42

Salary 6/19 (FY2018) Office:Mayor R -400.00

Salary 6/19 (FY2018) Office:Council R -900.00

Salary 6/19 (FY2018) Planning:Administration:Salaries R -2,457.16

Salary 6/19 (FY2018) Tax Coll:Sal R -50.00

FY2018 Emp:FICA:Soc Sec R -623.72

FY2018 Emp:FICA:Med R -145.91

    6/27/2019 EFT...NC State Treasurer 6/19 LGERS contrib... Office:Clerk R -181.44

6/19 LGERS contrib... Office:Finance Officer:Regular R -167.58

6/19 LGERS contrib... Planning:Administration:Salaries R -156.84

6/19 employer contri... Emp:Benefits:NCLGERS R -1,049.66

    6/28/2019 EFT Paychex Fees Fees 6/19 (FY2018) Emp:Payroll R -138.15

    6/28/2019 5644 Consolidated Press,... 550 8.5 x 5.5 2-up p... Planning:Ordinance Changes -576.45

    6/30/2019 EFT Debit Card (Office D... Binders, Dividers (F... Office:Supplies -82.19

    6/30/2019 EFT Debit Card (Office D... Labels, Folders (FY... Office:Supplies -60.71

    6/30/2019 EFT Debit Card (Office D... Adding Machine Rib... Office:Supplies -6.93

Register Report - Jun 2019
6/1/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/30/2019 Page 2



6/2/2019-
Category 6/30/2019

    Prop Tax 2018

        Receipts 2018

            Int 6.04

            Tax 102.04

            TOTAL Receipts 2018 108.08

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2018 108.08

    Prop Tax 2019

        Receipts 2019

            Tax 12.17

            TOTAL Receipts 2019 12.17

        TOTAL Prop Tax 2019 12.17

    Prop Tax Prior Years

        Prop Tax 2015

            Receipts 2015

                Int 0.16

                Tax 4.93

                TOTAL Receipts 2015 5.09

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2015 5.09

        Prop Tax 2016

            Receipts2016

                Int 1.25

                Tax 5.25

                TOTAL Receipts2016 6.50

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2016 6.50

        Prop Tax 2017

            Receipts2017

                Int 1.02

                Tax 8.94

                TOTAL Receipts2017 9.96

            TOTAL Prop Tax 2017 9.96

        TOTAL Prop Tax Prior Years 21.55

    Sales Tax

        Cable TV 4,950.00

        Electricity 50,300.00

        Natural Gas Excise 240.00

        Sales & Use Dist 4,117.76

        telecommunications 1,050.00

        TOTAL Sales Tax 60,657.76

    Veh Tax

        Int 2018 6.02

        Tax 2018 754.82

        TOTAL Veh Tax 760.84

Accounts Receivable 6/30/19
6/2/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 1



Date Description Memo Category Amount

    6/30/2019 NC Department of...Sales & Use 5/19 (FY2018) Sales Tax:Sales & Use Dist 2,057.76

    6/30/2019 Union County FY2018 Prop Tax 2019:Receipts 2019:... 12.17

FY2018 - June Prop Tax 2018:Receipts 2018:... 102.04

FY2018 - June Prop Tax 2018:Receipts 2018:... 6.04

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax... 8.94

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax... 1.02

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax... 5.25

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax... 1.25

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax... 4.93

FY2018 Prop Tax Prior Years:Prop Tax... 0.16

    6/30/2019 NC Department of...Sales & Use 6/19 ESTIMATED (FY2018) Sales Tax:Sales & Use Dist 2,060.00

    6/30/2019 NC Department of...Electricity 6/19 ESTIMATED (FY2018) Sales Tax:Electricity 50,300.00

    6/30/2019 NC Department of...Cable TV 6/19 ESTIMATED (FY2018) Sales Tax:Cable TV 4,950.00

    6/30/2019 NC Department of...Telecommunications 6/19 ESTIMATED (... Sales Tax:telecommunications 1,050.00

    6/30/2019 NC Department of...Natural Gas Excise 6/19 ESTIMATED (F... Sales Tax:Natural Gas Excise 240.00

    6/30/2019 Union County {N... NCVTS 1906 FY2018 Veh Tax:Tax 2018 754.82

NCVTS 1906 FY2018 Veh Tax:Int 2018 6.02

Accounts Receivable 6/30/19
6/2/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 1



6/2/2019-
Category 6/30/2019

    Ads 161.68

    Community

        Maint 675.00

        Parks & Rec

            Park 210.30

            TOTAL Parks & Rec 210.30

        TOTAL Community 885.30

    Office

        Post 500.00

        Supplies 213.52

        Util 234.68

        TOTAL Office 948.20

    Planning

        Ordinance Changes 746.72

        TOTAL Planning 746.72

    Street Lighting 108.88

    Tax Coll

        Contract 24.59

        TOTAL Tax Coll 24.59

    Travel 225.62

Accounts Payable 6/30/19
6/2/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 1



Date Description Memo Category Clr Amount

    6/30/2019 Xerox Corporation FY2018 Office:Supplies -213.52

FY2018 Planning:Ordinance ... -746.72

    6/30/2019 The Enquirer-Journal{c... 30065439 Public Hearings (FY2018) Ads -161.68

    6/30/2019 Ken Newell Welcome Signs 4/19 - 6/19 (FY2018) Community:Maint -675.00

    6/30/2019 R.C.S., Inc. I/N 108072 Park Restroom & Hand... Community:Parks & ... -200.00

    6/30/2019 Frederick Becker III 5/19 - 6/19 reimbursement: mileage... Travel -225.62

    6/30/2019 Duke Power 2035221941 (FY2018) Street Lighting -108.88

    6/30/2019 Duke Power 1803784140 (FY2018) Office:Util -186.04

    6/30/2019 Duke Power 1819573779 (FY2018) (Old School) Office:Util -22.10

    6/30/2019 Neofunds By Neopost 7900044034842470 (FY2018) Office:Post -500.00

    6/30/2019 Union County Public ... 91052*00 (FY2018) Community:Parks & ... -10.30

    6/30/2019 Union County Public ... 84361*00 (FY2018) Office:Util -26.54

    6/30/2019 Union County 6/19 Regular Taxes (FY2018) Tax Coll:Contract -2.13

    6/30/2019 Union County {NCVTS} 6/19 NCVTS (FY2018) Tax Coll:Contract -22.46

Accounts Payable - as of 6/30/19
6/2/2019 through 6/30/2019

7/29/2019 Page 1













County of Union -$ -$ -$ 124,614.59$ 124,614.59$

Town of Fairview 64.18$ 30,747.66$ 6,493.14$ 2,006.42$ 39,311.40$

Town of Hemby Bridge 972.89$ 11,888.00$ 2,724.68$ 3,533.93$ 19,119.50$

Town of Indian Trail 67,149.28$ 284,767.43$ 16,678.59$ 75,022.59$ 443,617.89$

Town of Lake Park 7,103.81$ 20,546.88$ 198.24$ 4,925.50$ 32,774.43$

Town of Marshville -$ 46,200.25$ 4,157.14$ 2,855.57$ 53,212.96$

Town of Marvin 12,296.66$ 38,149.74$ 12,160.68$ 17,251.84$ 79,858.92$

Town of Mineral Springs 738.71$ 49,286.78$ 968.44$ 5,164.54$ 56,158.47$

City of Monroe 44,841.06$ 683,940.85$ 63,872.08$ 53,243.81$ 845,897.80$

Town of Stallings 29,989.62$ 148,847.25$ 1,687.94$ 43,020.70$ 223,545.51$

Town of Unionville -$ 42,837.56$ 11,593.40$ 6,737.76$ 61,168.72$

Town of Waxhaw 24,442.43$ 145,646.38$ 11,963.79$ 46,896.82$ 228,949.42$

Town of Weddington 16,168.42$ 89,038.75$ 1,392.21$ 23,524.07$ 130,123.45$

Village of Wesley Chapel 11,893.17$ 44,515.44$ 1,745.79$ 23,823.41$ 81,977.81$

Town of Wingate -$ 29,969.90$ 3,273.19$ 5,373.90$ 38,616.99$



1,943,733.60 1,376,414.10 1,032,432.48 - 31.69 285,016.93 - - (302,741.84) 4,334,886.96
FAIRVIEW 814.02 576.43 432.37 - - 119.36 - - 600.65 2,542.83

HEMBY BRIDGE - - - - - - - - - -
INDIAN TRAIL 68,407.77 48,441.53 36,335.44 - 1.12 10,030.89 - - 50,477.87 213,694.62

LAKE PARK 6,064.64 4,294.54 3,221.29 - 0.10 889.28 - - 4,475.08 18,944.93
MARSHVILLE 9,020.33 6,387.56 4,791.23 - 0.15 1,322.68 - - 6,656.08 28,178.03

MARVIN 5,596.89 3,963.32 2,972.84 - 0.09 820.69 - - 4,129.92 17,483.75
MINERAL SPRINGS 696.32 493.08 369.85 - 0.01 102.10 - - 513.81 2,175.17

MINT HILL * 43.31 30.67 23.01 - - 6.35 - - 31.96 135.30
MONROE 200,499.53 141,979.53 106,497.22 - 3.27 29,399.99 - - 147,947.97 626,327.51

STALLINGS * 36,524.59 25,864.12 19,400.38 - 0.60 5,355.74 - - 26,951.38 114,096.81
UNIONVILLE 1,064.48 753.79 565.41 - 0.02 156.09 - - 785.48 3,325.27

WAXHAW 63,534.50 44,990.62 33,746.95 - 1.04 9,316.30 - - 46,881.91 198,471.32
WEDDINGTON * 10,991.82 7,783.62 5,838.41 - 0.18 1,611.77 - - 8,110.82 34,336.62

WESLEY CHAPEL 1,589.66 1,125.69 844.36 - 0.03 233.10 - - 1,173.00 4,965.84
WINGATE 5,428.82 3,844.30 2,883.57 - 0.09 796.05 - - 4,005.91 16,958.74

2,354,010.28 1,666,942.90 1,250,354.81 - 38.39 345,177.32 - - - 5,616,523.70

Page 1 of 1

NC Sales & Use Distribution







MINERAL SPRINGS

Jurisdiction # 990 Vendor: Invoice#:  1911-NCVTS

Description: NCVTS Refunds for the months of May

Invoice Date: 06/12/2019

Due Date: 06/13/2019

Acct# 0.49$



MINERAL SPRINGS

Jurisdiction # 990 Vendor: Invoice#:  1902-SOAP ERROR

Description: SOAP Error refunds for August 2018

Invoice Date: 5/22/2019

Due Date: 6/10/2019

Acct# 2.00$



TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS

RESOLUTION IN OPPOSITION TO APPROVAL BY UNION COUNTY
OF HIGH-DENSITY HOUSING NEAR MUNICIPAL BOUNDARIES

R-2019-02

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Town Council is entrusted with the responsibility of repre-
senting the needs and desires of its citizens and to serve as a voice for the greater good of the
community; and

WHEREAS, several high-density subdivisions requiring rezonings have been proposed or
approved by Union County in areas near the boundaries of the Town of Mineral Springs and in
areas between the Town of Mineral Springs, the Village of Wesley Chapel, and the City of
Monroe, and there is the potential for more high-density residential subdivisions in the near fu-
ture; and

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Town Council recognizes that a large majority of citizens
of Mineral Springs and of neighboring municipalities are not in favor of high-density develop-
ment and wish to preserve their current quality of life and avoid sprawl and urbanization; and

WHEREAS, the Mineral Springs Town Council recognizes that high-density development
places a burden on all aspects of the area’s infrastructure and presents the serious problem of
growth outpacing needed improvements; and

WHEREAS, traffic in the area and through the Town of Mineral Springs is at or near ca-
pacity and the transportation system cannot sustain additional impact from high-density devel-
opment that will negatively impact existing property owners and residents; and

WHEREAS, flooding and stormwater-control problems are increasing in areas in and
around Mineral Springs and are heightened by high-density development;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mineral Springs Town Council that the
Town of Mineral Springs hereby urges the Union County Board of County Commissioners to
listen to the desires of the citizens and maintain the current county zoning of R-40 and RA-40
in areas of county jurisdiction near the Mineral Springs municipal boundaries; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town of Mineral Springs stands with other munici-
palities in Union County in favor of this resolution.

ADOPTED, this the 8th day of August, 2019.

___________________________________
Frederick Becker III, Mayor

Attest:

___________________________________________
Vicky A. Brooks, Town Clerk

Agenda Item

#4
8/8/2019



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Time Slot Council Member 
10:00 a.m. to 11:15 a.m. 
(1 hour 15 minutes) 

Will need a volunteer to man the tent while council is introduced at 10:15 a.m. 

11:15 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. 
(1 hour 15 minutes) 

 

12:30 p.m. to 1:45 p.m.  
(1 hour 15 minutes) 

 

1:45 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. 
(1 hour 15 minutes) 

 

3:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.  
(1 hour) 

 

 
Town Council will oversee instructing/distributing/collecting the raffle tickets or 
game boards for the “prize-give-a-ways” (prizes donated by local business owners 
and town purchased).  Winners must be present to win! 
 

 
Time Slot Council Member 
10:00 a.m. to 11:15 a.m. 
(1 hour 15 minutes) 

Will need a volunteer to provide security while council is introduced at approximately 10:15 a.m. 

11:15 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. 
(1 hour 15 minutes) 

 

12:30 p.m. to 1:45 p.m.  
(1 hour 15 minutes) 

 

1:45 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. 
(1 hour 15 minutes) 

 

3:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.  
(1 hour) 

 

 
Town Council will oversee security for the “I Love Lucy” memorabilia in the town 
hall meeting room.  



Page 1 of 3 
 

Tuesday, September 3, 2019 thru  
Saturday, September 7, 2019 

Mineral Springs Festival 
Volunteer Sign-up Sheet 

 
 

Tuesday, September 3, 2019 @ 6:00 p.m. 
- Put up the stage and tent 
 
Name Phone Number 

1.  

2.  

3.  

4.  

5.  

6.  

 

Thursday, September 5, 2019 @ 6:00 p.m. 

- Put up nonprofit tent (20 x 40) 

 

Name Phone Number 

1.  

2.  

3.  

4.  

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Friday, September 6, 2019 @ 10:00 a.m. until … 

- Set-up children’s area – four 10 x 10 tents, straw, face-in-the-hole, etc. – install 

temporary fencing - stage items in preparation of Saturday morning set-up (i.e. 

first aid tent, sound system, cooler of water for volunteers, etc.)  

Name Phone Number 

1.  

2.  

3.  

4.  

5.  

6.  

 

Saturday, September 7, 2019 @ 7:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.+ 

Directing Craft Vendors, Food Vendors and Exhibitors – 
7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. 
This volunteer will be directing craft vendors, food vendors and exhibitors to their assigned 

spaces for set-up and then directing them to the vendor parking area. 

Volunteer Name / Phone Number: 

_______________________________________________________________ 

Town Hall Parking Lot Monitor  

This volunteer will see that the barricade remains in place and will only allow craft vendors or 

exhibitors in the parking lot for unloading only; they will then be directed to the vendor parking 

area.  

Town Hall Parking Lot Monitor – 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.  

Volunteer Name / Phone Number: 

_____________________________________________________________ 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Town Hall Parking Lot Monitor – 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.  

Volunteer Name / Phone Number: 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Town Hall Parking Lot Monitor – 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.  

Volunteer Name / Phone Number: 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Town Hall Parking Lot Monitor – 1:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m.  

Volunteer Name / Phone Number: 

_____________________________________________________________ 

 
Town Hall Parking Lot Monitor – 3:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. 

Volunteer Name / Phone Number: 

_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Festival Clean-up – 4:00 p.m. until ……… 
 
Pick up garbage, take down signs, take down tents, etc. 
 
Name Phone Number 

1.  

2.  

3.  

4.  

5.  

6.  

 
 



LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT – TOWN HALL 

This Landscape Maintenance Agreement is entered this the       1st  day of July, 2019 by 
and between TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS, a municipal corporation organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “Town”) and RICKY D TAYLOR D/B/A 
TAYLOR & SON LANDSCAPING & MOWING, a citizen and resident of the County of Union 
State of North Carolina (the “Contractor”) (collectively, the “Parties”). 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, the Town desires to contract with the Contractor for the provision of certain 
landscaping and maintenance services on the Town’s property, as more particularly described in 
Exhibit A, (the “Services”), which is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein; 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor wishes to contract with the Town to provide the Services; 
and 

 WHEREAS, the Town and the Contractor desire to reach an agreement for the Contractor 
to provide the Services subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Term.  The term of the Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year, beginning 
July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020 (the “Term”).  This Agreement shall not automatically 
renew under any circumstances. 

2. Scope of Services.  During the Term, Contractor shall care for and maintain the 
Town Hall and the immediately surrounding area.  All Services rendered shall be completed with 
the highest standard of care and workmanship prevailing in the field of landscape maintenance in 
the general geographic area in which the Town is located.  The Contractor agrees to perform the 
Services set forth on “Exhibit A” as attached. 

3. Termination.   This Agreement may be terminated, by either party, upon thirty 
(30) days prior written notice. 

4. Independent Contractor.  The parties agree that the Contractor’s relationship to 
the Town is that of an independent contractor and that nothing contained in this Agreement shall 
be construed as creating any other type of relationship.  The Contractor may adopt such 
arrangements as it desires with respect to the means, method, and manner of performing the 
Services under this Agreement, provided that those arrangements are consistent with the proper 
accomplishment of those Services. 

5. Billing.  Billing shall occur on a monthly basis and the Town shall endeavor to 
remit all payments within thirty (30) days after receipt of a correct invoice. 



 2 

6. Payment Schedule.  The Town shall compensate the Contractor for providing the 
Services pursuant to this Agreement by paying the Contractor the following amounts during the 
Term of this Agreement: 

a) Three Hundred Sixty-Five Dollars ($365.00) per month for the 
Services as outlined in Exhibit A. 

b) Actual invoiced amount(s) upon receipt of a correct invoice for 
additional materials and supplies required such as Seed, Fertilizer, 
Weed Killer, etc. 

7. Indemnification.  The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
Town from and against any and all actions, causes of action, claims and demands and from all 
damages, losses, costs or expenses of any nature which arise from or occur in connection with 
the performance by the Contractor, its employees or agents, of any Services under this 
Agreement, unless such loss or damage results from the Town’s gross negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

8. Notices.  All notices and other communications required or permitted under this 
Agreement shall be made in person or to the following addresses: 

If to the Contractor: Taylor & Son Landscaping & Mowing 
P o Box 631 
Monroe, North Carolina 28111 
Telephone:  704.283.6286 
 

 
If to the Town: Town of Mineral Springs 

3506 S Potter Road 
 P.O. Box 600 
 Mineral Springs, North Carolina  28108 

Telephone: 704.243.0505 
Fax:  704.243.1705 
 

 
9. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall in all respects be construed in accordance 

with and governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina. 

10. Binding Effect; Assignment.  This Agreement and the various rights and 
obligations arising hereunder shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties and 
their respective successors and permitted assigns.  This Agreement may not be assigned by either 
party without the prior written consent of the other party. 

11. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in multiple 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which taken together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 



 3 

12. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the attached Exhibits embody the entire 
agreement and understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter and supersede all 
prior and contemporaneous agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, related to its 
subject matter. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their authorized representatives to 
execute this Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

TAYLOR & SONS MOWING & LANDSCAPING 
 
 
By:    

Proprietor  
 
 
TOWN OF MINERAL SPRINGS 
 
 
By:    

Mayor 



EXHIBIT A 

Areas to be covered: 
  
Approximately 90,000 square feet of lawn area. 
 A minimum of three tree areas. 
 Town Hall sign landscaping area. 
 One parking lot tree landscaping area. 
 
I. LANDSCAPING AND MAINTENANCE: 

 
A. Mowing  

1. Lawn shall be mowed weekly during the growing season and as required during 
the winter months. 

2. The  height  of  cutting  shall  be  maintained  consistently  to  prevent  scalping  or 
burn.  The mowing height shall be appropriate to the turf species. 

3. Excessive grass clippings  shall be collected and disposed of; adjacent  sidewalks 
and streets shall be clean of clippings. 

4. Mowing  patterns  shall  be  alternated  each  week  to  avoid  creating  ruts  and 
compaction.  
 

B. Edging 
1. All  lawn  edges  along  sidewalks  and  curbs  shall  be  edged  before  each mowing 

during the active growing season (March through October) and as required  for 
appearance for the remainder of the year. 

2. Edging  shall  be performed with  a  blade  type mechanical  edger  at  least once a 
month; a monofilament line trimmer may be used at all other times on a weekly 
basis. 

3. A monofilament  line trimmer shall be used to trim around obstacles within the 
lawn area.  Care shall be taken to insure that the bark of trees and shrubs are not 
damaged or stripped by the line trimmer. 

4. Areas where the grass meets buildings, planters and other vertical surfaces shall 
be trimmed in a manner to maintain a clean and even meeting point.  Herbicides 
may not be used as a substitute for proper trimming. 

5. Edging and trimming  is not required around natural un‐mulched wooded areas 
or property boundaries. 
  

C. Debris Removal 
1. Litter  and  trash  (including  leaves,  rubbish,  paper,  bottles,  cans,  rocks,  gravel, 

pine cones, sticks), and other debris shall be removed from all areas on a weekly 
basis. 

2. All  refuse  resulting  from  the  maintenance  operation  of  properties  shall  be 
disposed of by the contractor. 

3. Hardscape (i.e. sidewalks, driveways, paved surfaces) shall be swept or blown off 
with a power blower to keep the grounds free of debris on a weekly basis during 
the  growing  season.    During  winter  months  all  grounds  shall  be  policed 
periodically for trash and debris and blown clear.  



 5 

4. Paved  surfaces  and  sidewalks  shall  be  weeded  as  often  as  necessary  to 
discourage unsightly weed growth.   This control shall be accomplished through 
the selective use of herbicides and mechanical means.   

 
D. Fertilization, Aeration and Reseeding 

1. Conduct annual soil tests of representative lawn areas within the first month of 
the contract. 

2. Apply  fertilizer and  lime, with  type, quantity and  frequency determined by soil 
test results. 

3. Aerate and seed in the fall (between September 15 and October 31). 
 

E. Weed Control 
1. A pre‐emergent shall be applied based on season and targeted weeds. 
2. All areas shall be kept  free of weeds.   Chemical and/or mechanical means may 

be used as appropriate.    If any weeding  is not performed, maintenance will be 
considered unsatisfactory. 

3. Before applying herbicides, the type of weed shall be identified and the control 
selected  accordingly,  using  the  most  effective  control  for  the  species,  the 
location and the season. 

4. Weeds  shall  not  be  allowed  to  grow  in  paved  areas  such  as  driveways, walks, 
curbs,  gutters,  etc.    Weeds  may  be  removed  manually  or  sprayed  with  an 
herbicide.  Dead weeds shall be removed from the paved and mulched areas.  
 

F. Pesticides 
1. Shall be applied as necessary. 
2. Apply ant control annually. 

 
G. Shrubs 

1. Pruning of shrubs shall be done to maintain growth within space limitations, to 
maintain  or  enhance  the  natural  growth  habit,  or  to  eliminate  diseased  or 
damaged growth. 

2. Mulching of the shrub and tree beds shall be maintained with fresh mulch in the 
spring  and  fall  season.    Shrub  and  tree  beds  shall  be  kept  weed  free.   Weed 
control will be accomplished with herbicides when possible and by hand pulling 
when danger to desirable plant material may exist.   

3. Shrubbery should be fertilized in the spring season as needed, unless otherwise 
agreed to. 

4. If mulch is more than 4” in beds, top layer should be removed before new mulch 
is  added  to  prevent  over mulching.    Beds  should  not  contain more  than  4”  of 
mulch.  Mulch shall not be applied to plant stems.  Root flare should be visible on 
all plants. 
 

H. Replacement Plantings 
1. The  Contractor  shall  report  to  the  Town  any  perennial  plant  material  not 

exhibiting normal growth and vigor.  If it has been determined that the material 
is beyond reviving, a written report recommending replacement shall be given to 
the Town Clerk.  This report shall include: (a) Identify the location, size and type 
of  plant;  (b)  Identify  the  reason  for  the  decline;  (c)  Cost  of  replacement.    No 



 6 

replacement  plantings  are  to  be  done  without  consent  of  the  Town  with  the 
exception of annual ornamental plants and flowers. 

2. Annual  flowers appropriate to the season shall be planted  in  front of the town 
hall sign during the months of April and October. 

 
 

 




	080819 Town Council Agenda
	071119 Town Council Minutes DRAFT
	19_06_to_print
	June_2019_Union_County_Tax_Report
	Tax_Report_6-19
	Unpaid Property Taxes - All

	Finance_Report_1906
	Finance Report Monthly Cover June 2019.pdf (p.1-2)
	Cash_Flow_YTD_ACCRUED.pdf (p.3-6)
	Cash_Flow_YTD_CASH.pdf (p.7-10)
	Account_Balances_History.pdf (p.11-12)
	Revenue Summary 2018-19-YE-EST-June.pdf (p.13)
	Budget Comparison 2018-19 YE-June.pdf (p.14-15)
	June_Cash_Flow-ACCRUED.pdf (p.16-18)
	June_Cash_Flow-CASH.pdf (p.19-21)
	Register_Report.pdf (p.22-23)
	Accounts_Receivable_summary.pdf (p.24)
	Accounts_Receivable_register.pdf (p.25)
	Accounts_Payable_summary.pdf (p.26)
	Accounts_Payable_register.pdf (p.27)
	This page intentionally left blank.pdf (p.28)
	Page divider Revenue Details.pdf (p.29-30)
	County_Tax_EFT_May.pdf (p.31)
	County_Tax_Report_May.PDF (p.32)
	Utility_Sales_Distribution_-_3-31-19.pdf (p.33)
	Sales_Use_Distribution_-_April_2019.pdf (p.34)
	NCVTS_Tax_EFT_May.pdf (p.35)
	NCVT15_May.pdf (p.36)
	NCVTS_Refunds.pdf (p.37)
	SOAP_Refund_NCVTS.pdf (p.38)

	190808_R2019-2_Union_County_Density_agenda_item
	Town Council Festival Tent Sign-up Sheet 2019
	Pre-Festival_Festival_Sign_Up_Sheet_2019
	Tayor & Sons Mowing & Landscaping 2019-2020
	Future Community Center Maintenance Proposal

